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REPORT BY GASUM CORPORATION’S BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OPERATING ENVIRONMENT
The cleanest fossil fuel, natural gas plays an increasing role in the world and European energy markets. Natural
gas consumption is growing in Asia and the Middle East in particular but, according to the IEA’s World Energy
Outlook, natural gas consumption is on the rise in Europe as well. In addition to carbon dioxide emission levels
significantly below those from other fossil fuels, the benefits of natural gas include its minute particulate emissions
and considerably lower nitrogen oxide emissions, which have a major impact on local air quality particularly in
urban areas.
With Europe’s own natural gas production decreasing, alternative sourcing is set to become increasingly important
in the near future. There are six new liquefied natural gas (LNG) import terminals under construction in Europe in
addition to the 20 terminals already operational. The total terminal capacity already covers more than one-third of
Europe’s natural gas consumption, which is why fluctuation in the world market price of LNG will also be reflected
in Central European gas marketplace pricing in the future. With the exception of the occasional SPOT delivery,
however, the price of LNG is not competitive against pipeline gas, but the increased import of SPOT deliveries is
likely to result in greater volatility in Central European market prices.
Published in October, the Finnish Government’s Energy and Climate Roadmap 2050 regards it important to secure
the status of natural gas in the Finnish energy palette as a bridge toward lower-emission technologies. The use of
natural gas is justified because of its suitability to a variety of purposes and because it maintains the existing gas
infrastructure for the transfer and use of biogas and bio-based synthetic natural gas. According to the Roadmap,
the benefits of gas include the existing infrastructure, the versatility of gas and the lower emission levels in
comparison with coal and oil.
The consumption of natural gas has decreased significantly in Finland in the past four years. This drop has been
due to the poor price competitiveness of gas against other fuel alternatives and the structural change in industry
and energy production that has taken place in the area covered by the gas pipeline network. The competitiveness
of gas has also been impaired by the tax increase that has taken effect in stages in 2011, 2013 and 2015 and
eroded the competitiveness of natural gas in particular against coal. The tax changes taking effect at the
beginning of 2015 will further reduce the competitiveness of natural gas in combined heat and power (CHP)
production. In terms of climate, 2014 was the second-warmest year ever recorded in Finland and this, coupled
with the poor economic development, also had a major impact on the annual consumption of natural gas. The
relative competitiveness of natural gas in CHP was also hampered by the long-prevailing low price trend seen in
the Nordic electricity market and emissions trading.
Price competitiveness has also been undermined by the supply price of gas. Natural gas price development
remained quite stable until September 2014, after which the energy charge of natural gas was pulled down by the
world market price of crude oil, with the rate of decrease accelerating towards the end of the year. The change in
price level, which for natural gas ended up entailing a record rate of drop, is anticipated to affect the natural gas
energy charge at least until summer 2015. In terms of the annual average price, the drop in the natural gas
energy charge was around 6% (around €2/MWh) on the level seen in 2013, and the rate of decrease in the natural
gas energy charge is still forecast to exceed 30% in 2015.
The Nordic liquefied natural gas (LNG) market is undergoing intense development. Industry is seeking out costefficient and more environmentally friendly alternatives to oil and liquefied petroleum gas (LPG), and the new
sulfur dioxide emission limits that will enter into force in 2015 will increase the need for cleaner marine fuels.
Projects are being developed by several players to improve access to LNG across the Nordic countries. In Finland
the Ministry of Employment and the Economy granted a total of €90 million in subsidies to four LNG terminal
projects in 2014, with investment decisions made on the Pori and Tornio terminals during the year under review.
Gasum became the leading player in the Nordic LNG market with its acquisition of 51% of the Norwegian Skangass
AS.
The alternative fuels infrastructure directive was published in October. It requires the creation of a refueling
network in the 2020s in all Member States also for methane, which can be used as a transport fuel in a
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compressed (CNG) or liquefied (LNG) form. The expansion of the distribution network of compressed methane
outside the areas covered by the natural gas pipeline network will create an excellent platform for significant
increases in the number of gas-fueled cars and delivery vehicles in Finland and, consequently, increases in the use
of the cleanest vehicle fuel of all – biogas. Biogas is already available at every one of Finland’s current gas filling
stations. The main use of LNG in road transport is to fuel heavy-duty vehicles, and the first truck running on LNG
was seen on Finland's roads in 2014.
REVENUE AND FINANCIAL DEVELOPMENT
The Gasum Group’s revenue for January 1 to December 31, 2014 totaled €1,079 million (2013: €1,150 million).
Operating profit totaled €5.1 million (2013: €40.5 million) or 0.5% of the revenue total.
Underlying the decrease in revenue was the decline in natural gas sales volumes and price compared with the year
before. In addition to the sales margin lost due to the lower natural gas volume sold, operating profit was also
eroded by the write-offs made during the period under review relating to issues including preparatory work for the
western extension of the transmission pipeline network (€8.0 million written off) and the decrease in the fair value
of derivative contracts entered into for the purpose of hedging the sales margin of natural gas sold to customers
under a fixed price factor following the oil price collapse toward the end of the year. The net change in the fair
value of derivative contracts was €12.8 million. The Group does not apply hedge accounting.
During the year under review the Gasum Group's return on equity was -1.1% (2013: 8.9%).

BALANCE SHEET, FINANCING AND CASH FLOW
The Group's balance sheet total at December 31, 2014 was €1,621 million (2013: €823 million). The increase is
due to the Skangass acquisition and the related consolidation of a liquefaction facility. The Group’s equity ratio
was 28% (2013: 52%).
Reported under inventories in the Group and parent company’s balance sheet is a prepayment of €188.7 million as
required under a Take-or-Pay gas contract (2013: €82.7 million). These payments accrued over the 2009–2014
period when Gasum’s natural gas procurement from Gazprom at times failed to reach the minimum contracted
annual quantity under the long-term supply contract between the parties. Gasum has an unrestricted right to
utilize this prepayment over the coming years.
The Group’s cash flow from operating activities before financial items and taxes amounted to €63 million (2013:
€100 million).
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2014 totaled €82.4 million (2013: €5.5 million). The
Group’s borrowings from financial institutions totaled €320 million (2013: €164 million), of which non-current
borrowings accounted for €305 million (€93 million) and current borrowings for €14 million (€71 million). The
Group’s current borrowings at December 31, 2014 also included €100 million in commercial papers. The increase
in borrowings was mainly due to a loan raised to finance the Skangass acquisition.
Other non-current liabilities on the balance sheet at €323 million consisted mainly of the purchase options and
obligations relating to the Skangass arrangement and liabilities relating to a finance lease arrangement.

Key financial indicators
€ thousands
Revenue
Operating profit
Operating profit -%
Equity ratio
Return on equity -%
Balance sheet total

2014

2013

2012

1,079,042
5,105
0.5%
28.4%
-1.1%
1,621,103

1,149,702
40,545
3.5%
51.8%
8.9%
822,772

1,274,648
60,745
4.8%
48.2%
9.8%
888,402
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
The Gasum Group’s capital expenditure on fixed assets in 2014 totaled €51.5 million (€21.6 million). The majority
of the expenditure involved the construction of LNG terminals, in addition to which Gasum invested in the
development and maintenance of natural gas transmission networks, the biogas business, and the expansion of
the vehicle fuel distribution network.
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT IN 2014
Natural gas sales in Finland totaled 29.3 TWh in 2014 (2013: 33.2 TWh). The lower volume resulted in revenue
from the wholesale and transmission of natural gas also falling considerably below the level seen the year earlier.
Natural gas sales decreased particularly in combined heat and power (CHP) production where natural gas was
pushed aside by coal in particular.
The stable price development seen in early 2014 was replaced in September by the collapse of the world market
price of oil, which was reflected in the supply and sales prices of natural gas as well. With prices falling, more and
more customers also took the opportunity provided by Gasum to fix the oil index of the natural gas wholesale
price tariff. Gasum hedged the sales subject to price indexes fixed by customers with corresponding hedging
products against oil index changes obtained from the commodity derivatives market. The Group does not apply
hedge accounting to these derivatives, and the negative change in value following the further decline in oil prices
since the fixing date is recognized as a loss in the income statement.
Local distribution business volumes decreased slightly, mainly due to warm weather, while volumes for other
operations remained unchanged. All told, the transmission of natural gas in the Finnish distribution network
amounted to 50.6 million m3 (51.1 million m3 in 2013). New customers were connected to distribution networks in
western Uusimaa, while in the Kotka region some customers switched from natural gas to district heat or
geothermal heat.
Gasum’s biogas production capacity increased considerably in late 2014 when a new facility with an annual
capacity of 50 GWh was opened in Kujala, Lahti, Finland. The amount of biogas injected into the network totaled
33,877 MWh in 2014. Biogas was fed into the network from Mäkikylä, Kouvola; the Suomenoja wastewater
treatment plant, Espoo; and also from Lahti as of November. Biogas was sold for use as a vehicle fuel from
Gasum’s 18 public filling stations, where the share of biogas rose to 40% of the total. The year also saw the
launch of the sales of biogas for other natural energy gas uses, including a variety of industrial applications,
property heating and residential use.
Gasum is the Finnish transmission network operator under the Natural Gas Market Act and obliged to maintain and
develop the network. Gasum’s activities and the reasonableness of pricing are supervised by the Energy Authority.
The rate of return on natural gas transmission services for 2014 was below the permitted annual level, as has
been the case every year during the current regulatory period ending in 2015. In order to maintain the
competitiveness of gas, Gasum has foregone any increases in the transmission tariff. The security of natural gas
supply was at an excellent level in 2014, with not a single unplanned supply interruption seen in the transmission
network.
The total length of the natural gas transmission network was 1,287 km at the end of 2014. There were no new
pipeline entities connected to the network in 2014. Following the decision made by Turun Seudun
Energiantuotanto Oy to construct a multi-fuel CHP plant, Gasum gave up the expropriation permits for the pipeline
extension planned for the western coast of Finland. This also involved the write-off of design and preparatory work
for the pipeline extension.
Toward the end of the year Gasum and the Estonian transmission system operator, EG Võrguteenus, submitted a
joint application for the continuation of design and studies for the Balticconnector gas pipeline project between
Finland and Estonia. The implementation of this offshore interconnector will, however, require the development of
the market and other gas infrastructure projects in the Baltics, and no investment decision can be made before
the implementation of these projects is confirmed.
Annual trading by Gasum subsidiary Gas Exchange Ltd amounted to 1,891 GWh (2013: 2,035 GWh),
corresponding to 6.4% of the total volume of natural gas consumption in Finland.
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In May Gasum completed the acquisition of a 51% stake in Skangass AS, a company at that point operating in
Norway and Sweden, and also transferred its Finnish LNG business under Skangass. The year 2014 was a period
of strong growth for the Skangass subgroup, with the total volume of its LNG deliveries reaching 284,000 tonnes.
LNG supply from the LNG terminal constructed in Lysekil, north of Gothenburg, Sweden, to the Preem oil refinery
began in the summer. Later in the autumn the terminal also began deliveries to other local industrial facilities as
well as SSAB in Borlänge. In Norway deliveries to the Rockwool insulation manufacturing facility started in June.
The second large LNG-fueled vessel in Finland, the offshore patrol vessel OPV Turva of the Finnish Border Guard,
began service in July.
In early 2014 a decision was made by Gasum to construct Finland’s first LNG terminal in Pori. Once investment
support for the project was granted by the Ministry of Employment and the Economy, Skangass Ltd made the
investment decision on terminal construction in September. The terminal is due for completion in early autumn
2016. The first gas supply agreement for the Pori terminal was signed with Huntsman Pigments Oy (previously
Sachtleben Pigments Oy). In December Skangass joint venture company Manga LNG also made the decision to
invest in the construction of an LNG terminal in Tornio, Finland.
Most of the LNG sold by Skangass is liquefied in Risavika, Norway, and the full capacity of the Risavika production
facility is reserved by Skangass under a long-term tolling agreement. Skangass also entered into a two-year
supply agreement with the energy company ENI. Skangass has long-term charterparties to two LNG carriers for
LNG shipments.
At the European Commission's request, Gasum and the Estonian energy company AS Alexela Energy produced a
report on collaboration models for a regional LNG terminal to serve Finland and the Baltics. No commercially viable
cooperation model at the support level indicated by the European Commission could be discovered in the studies
conducted. Gasum is continuing to pursue its own terminal project in the changed circumstances, with a view to
improving access to LNG by customers in Southern Finland. The project can only be implemented if the gas
market in the Baltic Sea area develops and the project can be made commercially viable.
As part of the Gasum strategy to focus on the development of the gas market in Finland and the Nordic countries,
Gasum Energiapalvelut Oy sold its Estonian business, Gasum Eesti AS, to the Alexela Group company AS Alexela
Energy in September.
THE ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY
Gasum’s integrated management system comprises quality, environmental and safety management systems and
is certified to the ISO 9001:2008, ISO 14001:2004 and OHSAS 18001:2007 standards. System conformity is
monitored annually through internal audits as well as audits conducted by an external organisation.
The most significant environmental impacts of Gasum's Finnish operations result from the use of compressors and
the construction of pipelines. Some of the compressor stations required in natural gas transmission come under
emissions trading. Nitrogen oxide emissions are reduced by selecting those compressor units that utilize lowemissions combustion technologies. Carbon dioxide emissions are minimized by using less fuel gases at
compressor stations. Environmental impacts of construction are reduced through approaches including new
construction technologies and in-depth preliminary assessments of environmental impacts.
Gasum did not reach its occupational safety target in 2014. There were 13 accidents at work, with 5 of these
resulting in at least one day off work.
As part of its action to combat climate change, Gasum joined the Climate Leadership Council (CLC), a consortium
of leading Finnish companies. Comprising Sitra, Caverion, Fortum, KONE, Neste Oil, Outotec and ST1 in addition to
Gasum, the purpose of the CLC is to boost the general competitiveness of Finnish industries and research
organizations and improve their preparedness to respond to the threats posed by climate change and dwindling
natural resources as well as their capacity to utilize the business opportunities arising from these. The CLC is
premised on the notion that profitable and sustainable business is the most effective response to global climate
challenges.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS
Some of Gasum’s research and development takes place under the research programs of CLEEN Ltd, but Gasum is
also active in other research consortiums, such as the Neo-Carbon Energy project launched during the period
under review. Neo-Carbon Energy is a multidisciplinary research project aiming to produce a ‘Plan B’ to achieve an
emission-free energy system without nuclear power and carbon dioxide capture. Gasum has been involved in the
development of LNG value chain lifecycle calculation in the Measurement, Monitoring and Environmental
Assessment (MMEA) program of CLEEN Ltd. In the Sustainable Bioenergy Solutions for Tomorrow (BEST) research
program, the enterprise partners have collaborated to identify future areas for bioenergy research. One of
Gasum’s new R&D initiatives is a study relating to power-to-gas technology (P2G), and investment in it continues.
In late 2014 Gasum launched its annual innovation competition, this year themed on ideas from a variety of
sectors for the road transport use of natural energy gases. The grand prize is €100,000, and the winner will be
announced in June 2015. Gasum’s sustained efforts to develop the biogas business gained recognition when the
development of the biogas concept was nominated for the Energy Initiative of the Year award in an annual
competition organized by the Tekniikka&Talous magazine specializing in industry issues.
Ten grants, amounting to a total of €95,500, were issued in 2014 from the Gasum Gas Fund administered by the
Finnish Foundation for Technology Promotion.

PERSONNEL
The number of Gasum Group employees increased in 2014, especially due to the Skangass acquisition. At yearend the Group had 315 employees, of whom 275 were based in Finland. The Gasum Group had an average of 281
employees in 2014, with an average of 127 employed by Gasum Corporation. The largest subsidiary in terms of
personnel, Gasum Tekniikka Oy, had 120 employees, while the Skangass subgroup had 43 employees.
In 2014 the Gasum Group had in place a performance and profit bonus scheme covering the entire personnel,
while a long-term reward system applies to Group key persons. The reward systems comply with the guidelines
issued by the Ownership Steering Department in the Prime Minister’s Office.
OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE AND SHARES
On November 11, 2014 the State of Finland acquired the 31% shareholding of Fortum Heat and Gas Oy and the
20% shareholding of E.ON Ruhrgas International GmbH in Gasum, raising State ownership in Gasum to 75%. Of
the shares held by the State, 48.5% are owned by Gasonia Oy and 26.5% by the National Emergency Supply
Agency. The remaining 25% of Gasum shares are owned by OAO Gazprom.
The company's share capital is divided into Series A and Series K shares. There are 53,000,000 Series A shares
and 1 Series K share. The Series K share is held by the Finnish State. Each share confers one vote at shareholders'
meetings.
The company’s dividend policy specifies that the company seeks to pay out 30–50% of the parent company’s
profit in dividends.
CORPORATE STRUCTURE AND GOVERNANCE
The Gasum Group parent company is Gasum Corporation, which owns 100% of the following subsidiaries
operating in Finland: Gasum Energiapalvelut Oy, Gasum Paikallisjakelu Oy, Gasum Tekniikka Oy, Gas Exchange
Ltd and Helsingin Kaupunkikaasu Oy. The Group’s maintenance services are centralized under Gasum Tekniikka
Oy. Gasum Paikallisjakelu Oy is responsible for the Group’s distribution network maintenance and development
and Gasum Energiapalvelut Oy for natural gas retail trade, solution sales and heat services.
In addition, Gasum Corporation owns 51% of the Norwegian Skangass AS, which owns 100% of the following
subsidiaries: Skangass Terminal AB (Sweden), Skangass Ltd (Finland) and Skangass Terminal Gävle AB (Sweden).
As provided in the Finnish Limited Liability Companies Act, those responsible for Group administration and
operations are Gasum Corporation’s general meeting of shareholders, Board of Directors and Chief Executive
Officer. The general meeting of shareholders also selects Gasum’s Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board is
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tasked with ensuring that the company is run in line with the decisions and instructions of the general meeting of
shareholders and sound business principles. The Supervisory Board makes decisions on major strategic policies
regarding Gasum Corporation and also appoints Gasum Corporation’s Board of Directors.
The Board of Directors comprises the chair and a maximum of six ordinary members. The Board of Directors is
responsible for the company’s administration and operations in compliance with legislation, the Articles of
Association and the instructions issued by the Supervisory Board, for decisions on matters such as the conveyance
and mortgaging of fixed assets and for the hiring and dismissal of senior managers not appointed by the
Supervisory Board.
Johanna Lamminen was appointed to chair the Board of Directors of Gasum Corporation on March 20, 2014, with
Antero Jännes chairing the Board until that date. Serving as vice chair and Board member was Christer Paltschik,
while the other Board members were Aleksei Novitsky, Ari Suomilammi and Kristiina Vuori.
At Gasum Corporation’s Annual General Meeting of April 2, 2014 Juha Rantanen was appointed as chairman the
Gasum Supervisory Board and Jarmo Väisänen as vice chairman. The other members of the Supervisory Board –
Seppo Aho, Timo Karttinen, Rainer Link, Matthias Kohlenbach, Pavel Oderov and Igor Lipskiy –retained their
positions. With Fortum and E.ON Ruhrgas having sold their shares to the State of Finland, an extraordinary
general meeting on November 24 accepted the resignation from the Supervisory Board of Seppo Aho, Timo
Karttinen, Rainer Link and Matthias Kohlenbach, and appointed Pekka Hurtola and Minna Pajumaa to replace them.
During the year under review, the Board of Directors convened for 16 meetings and the Supervisory Board for five
meetings.
Johanna Lamminen started as Gasum’s Chief Executive Officer on March 1, 2013 following the retirement of her
predecessor Antero Jännes. The CEO is assisted in the steering of the Group's operations by the Group’s Executive
Management Group (EMG). The composition of the EMG and the organization of the Gasum Group were adjusted
in the spring to better reflect the Group's growth objectives.
Appointed by the Annual General Meeting, authorized public accountants PricewaterhouseCoopers Oy acted as the
Gasum Group’s auditors, with Pasi Karppinen APA as the principal auditor.

RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Gasum Corporation has a long-term supply contract with the Russian Gazprom Export. Extending until 2027, the
contract covers matters including annual quantity purchased and the minimum contracted annual quantity (Takeor-Pay). A prepayment on quantities below the minimum is paid and can be utilized in subsequent years in
situations where the gas purchase volume exceeds the Take-or-Pay limit.
Total annual consumption in the Finnish gas market has in recent years been lower than the minimum purchase
commitment limit agreed under the Take-or-Pay contract, and this has resulted in Gasum accruing a prepayment
of €188.7 million (2013: €82.7 million) on the quantities of gas that will be physically delivered in subsequent
years when Gasum exceeds the purchase quantity limit of the supply contract.
Under the supply contract currently in effect, gas must be competitive in the Finnish market, and Gasum is
currently negotiating with Gazprom Export on amendments to the terms and conditions of the contract to improve
the price competitiveness of gas. The outcome of these negotiations will play a key role in the development of the
company’s financial performance and financing situation.
Gasum’s business risks are also to do with the energy market and developments in the prices and mutual
competitiveness of fuels and electricity. In addition, there are risks relating to issues such as business regulation,
the functioning of the transmission system, safety and security, environmental impacts, and access to natural gas.
A further risk relating to the LNG business is the development of LNG sales in relation to investments having to do
with logistics and sourcing.
Gasum has protected itself against fuel and particularly oil price fluctuation by developing its own sales pricing to
reflect the pricing in its natural gas supply contract. The sales margin of natural gas sold to customers under a
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fixed price index is hedged with corresponding derivative contracts. Changes in fuel taxation, energy subsidies or
natural gas market regulation affecting the competitiveness of natural gas may result in negative impacts on the
company’s financial position or its opportunities to achieve the objectives set for natural gas market development.
Financial risks relating to Gasum’s business are market risk (including interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. According to the Treasury Policy adopted, the Group’s Treasury unit is responsible for the
Group’s financial risk management. The unit reports monthly on the Group’s financing situation and changes in
risk position to the parent company’s Board of Directors.

FUTURE OUTLOOK
Finland’s economic competitiveness and the promotion of wellbeing throughout society require reasonably priced
energy that helps minimize the burden on the environment. Carbon dioxide and local emissions from natural gas
are considerably lower than those from other fossil fuels. Emissions are further reduced by the high efficiency that
can be achieved with natural gas in combined heat and power (CHP) production. For reasons including these it is
particularly positive that the Finnish State has adopted a favorable stance to improving the status of gas in the
future.
Liquefied natural gas (LNG) is a competitive and clean alternative for industries outside the pipeline network as
well as for land and maritime transport. LNG can help achieve significant emission cuts while also ensuring the
competitiveness of the Finnish export industry. Investments in the LNG distribution network enable market growth
beyond the network to serve industrial, shipping and road transport customers.
Gasum also intends to invest strongly in biogas production and evolve into a biogas pioneer in the Nordic market.
In the future it will also be possible to utilize the developing gas system for the power-to-gas storage of renewable
energies.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROPOSAL FOR DISTRIBUTION OF PROFITS
At December 31, 2014 the parent company had distributable funds of €66,493,849.47, which includes the profit
for the period, €39,405,978.55. The Board of Directors proposes to the general meeting of shareholders that no
dividend be paid and that the profit for the period be transferred to retained earnings.

GASUM GROUP
Miestentie 1, PO Box 21
FI-02151 Espoo
Finland
Phone: +358 20 44 71
www.gasum.com
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

€ thousands

Note

2,6

Revenue

7

Other operating income

8
9
10
11

Materials and services
Personnel expenses
Depreciations, amortization and impairment
Other operating expenses
Operating profit
Finance income
Finance expenses
Finance expenses net

13

Share of profit/loss of investments accounted
for using the equity method
Profit before income tax
14
14

Current income tax expense (income)
Change of deferred taxes
Profit for the period

1.1.−31.12.2014

1.1.−31.12.2013

1,079,042

1,149,702

19,108

967

-953,662
-28,318
-48,704
-62,361

-1,040,366
-19,776
-27,404
-22,578

5,105

40,545

841
-11,042
-10,201

337
-6,309
-5,972

-157

-40

-5,253

34,533

-4,767
5,251

-5,883
9,419

-4,770

38,068

-1,558
-3,211

38,068
0

-4,770

38,068

-1,898

-470

-6,668

37,598

-3,456
-3,211

37,598
0

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Minority
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Profit for the period
Other items in comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations

33

Total comprehensive income for the period
Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Minority
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

€ thousands

Note

31.12.2014

31.12.2013

16, 17
18
20
21
26
5, 19
22

218,915
933,375
72
6,241
6,530
3,125
10,520

10,467
580,219
76
2,289
0
0
2,299

1,178,779

595,351

206,305
145,680
3
7,890
0
82,446

89,258
129,347
991
0
3,340
4,485

442,324

227,421

1,621,103

822,772

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Available-for-sale investments
Investments accounted for using the equity method
Deferred tax assets
Derivative financial instruments
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
24
23

Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Available-for-sale investments
Derivative financial instruments
Current tax assets
Cash and cash equivalents

5, 19
25

Total current assets

Total assets
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

€ thousands

Note

31.12.2014

31.12.2013

178,279
227,994
-1,558
404,714

178,279
209,738
38,068
426,085

55,581

0

460,295

426,085

304,703
322,696
8,465
62,952
2,793
10,353

92,953
11,666
6,576
51,288
0
4,457

711,961

166,940

114,441
313,656
19,150
1,599

71,448
156,557
1,742
0

448,847

229,748

Total liabilities

1,160,808

396,687

Total equity and liabilities

1,621,103

822,772

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

27

Share capital
Retained earnings
Profit for the period
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest
Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
29
30
33
26
28
5, 19

Borrowings
Other non-current liabilities
Post-employment benefits
Deferred tax liabilities
Accruals
Derivative financial instruments
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
29
31
5, 19

Borrowings
Trade and other payables
Derivative financial instruments
Current income tax liabilities
Total current liabilities
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

€ thousands

Attributable to owners of the parent Minority

Total equity

Share
capital

Retained
earnings

Total

178,279

250,223

428,502

428,502

38,068

38,068

38,068

-470

-470

-470

0

0

Total comprehensive income for the period

37,598

37,598

37,598

Dividends paid

-40,015

-40,015

-40,015

Total transactions with owners, recognized
directly in equity

-40,015

-40,015

-40,015

247,806

426,085

426,085

Equity at January 1, 2013
Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income:
Remeasurements of post-employment
benefits
Translation differences

Equity at December 31, 2013

€ thousands

Equity at January 1, 2014

178,279

Attributable to owners of the
parent
Share
capital

Retained
earnings

Total

178,279

247,806

426,085

-1,558

-1,558

Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income:
Remeasurements of post-employment
benefits

Minority

Total equity

426,085
-3,211

-4,770

-3,211

-6,668

-1,898

-1,898

-3,456

-3,456

Dividends paid

-17,914

-17,914

-17,914

Total transactions with owners, recognized
directly in equity

-17,914

-17,914

-17,914

Total comprehensive income for the period

Changes due to business combinations

Equity at December 31, 2014

178,279

226,436
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404,715

-1,898

58,792

58,792

55,581

460,295

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
€ thousands

Note

1.1.−31.12.2014

1.1.−31.12.2013

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortization
Finance income and expenses
Unrealized gains/losses
Other non-cash items
Change in working capital
Cash inflow from operating activities before financial items and taxes

-5,253

34,533

48,704
10,201
13,829
1,683
-6,103
63,061

27,404
5,972
3,277
611
28,131
99,928

Interest paid and other payments from finance activities
Interest received
Income taxes paid
Cash flow from financial items and taxes

-10,001
330
-4,197
-13,868

-4,358
213
-7,021
-11,166

Net cash flows from operating activities

49,193

88,762

-49,792
-4,145
114
0
2,169
-139,477

-21,563
-221
611
408
0
0

-191,131

-20,765

Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayment of non-current borrowings
Proceeds from current borrowings
Repayment of current borrowings
Dividends paid
Increase of receivable loans
Increase/decrease of non-current assets

309,000
-124,854
213,300
-152,847
-17,914
0
-7,774

0
-47,699
14,342
-231
-40,015
-482
-1,298

Net cash flows from financing activities

218,911

-75,383

76,973

-7,384

5,476
82,449

12,860
5,476

10
13

Cash flows from investing activities
Investments in tangible assets
Investment in joint venture and available-for-sale investments
Proceeds from sale of tangible assets
Investments in associated companies
Sale of subsidiary, net of cash at the time of sale
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Net cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Net decrease (-)/increase (+) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period (Dec 31)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

25
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General information
Gasum Corporation is a Finnish limited liability company and the parent company of Gasum Group (“Gasum”, the
“Group” or the “Company”, unless otherwise stated) domiciled in Espoo at registered address Miestentie 1, PO Box
21, 02151 Espoo.
Established in 1994, Gasum is a Finnish expert in natural energy gases (natural gas and biogas) that is a diverse
service provider for energy producers, homes and industries and offers an environmental solution for land and
maritime transport. In February 2014, Gasum announced that it would acquire a majority holding in the
Norwegian Skangass AS. The transaction was completed in May 2014. Skangass’ LNG distribution business
continues to solidify the status of LNG and the ever broader utilization of clean solutions in line with the company’s
strategy. The Company is the leading supplier of biogas in Finland. With its sustainable solutions, the Company
strives for a cleaner local environment, a cleaner Baltic Sea and a cleaner climate. The company has more than
300 employees in Finland, Sweden and Norway. Copies of the consolidated financial statements are available at
Gasum’s head office at Miestentie 1, 01250 Espoo and on the Company website at www.gasum.com. The majority
shareholder in Gasum Corporation is the State of Finland and the consolidated financial statements of the Gasum
Group are the highest level to which Gasum Corporation and its subsidiaries are consolidated.
The Board of Directors of Gasum Corporation has approved these consolidated financial statements for issue at
February 23, 2015.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation
Gasum´s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union, conforming with the IAS and IFRS standards as
well as SIC- and IFRIC interpretations applicable as at December 31, 2014. The International Financial Reporting
Standards refer to the standards and associated interpretations in the Finnish Accounting Act and in regulations
issued under it that are approved by the EU for application in accordance with the procedure laid down in
Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002. The notes to the consolidated financial statements are also in accordance with the
requirements of the Finnish accounting and corporate legislation supplementing the IFRS rules.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared primarily under the historical cost convention unless
otherwise indicated. Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss have been
revalued at fair value.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of euros unless otherwise stated.

New and amended standards and interpretations adopted
Improvements to IFRS standards. Minor and less urgent improvements into standards are effected through the
Annual Improvements – procedure collecting changes together annually. Items included in the Annual
Improvements relate to five standards.

Early adoption of standards not yet effective
Several new standards, amendments and interpretations take effect only in reporting periods starting later than
January 1, 2014. These have not been applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. Only
the following are presumed to have impacts on the financial statements of Gasum Corporation:
Gasum – Financial Statements 2014

16

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers. The standard deals with revenue recognition and establishes
principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is recognized
when a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the
benefits from the good or service. The standard hasn’t yet been approved by EU. The group is assessing the
impact of IFRS 15.
IFRS 9 Financial instruments addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities. There are changes inter alia: Three primary measurement categories for financial assets,
measuring investments in equity instruments, a new expected credit losses model, changes of recognition in own
credit risk and relax in requirements for hedge effectiveness. The standard hasn’t yet been approved by EU. The
group is yet to assess IFRS 9’s full impact.

Consolidation principles
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all such entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognized amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
If the business acquisition is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date and any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are recognized in profit or loss.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in
accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted within
equity.
The excess of the consideration transferred the fair value amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, the fair value of
non-controlling interest recognized and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized directly in the profit and loss.
Inter-company transactions, receivables and liabilities as well as unrealized gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated. When needed, the financial statements by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform to the Group’s accounting policies.
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions – that is, as transactions with the owners in the capacity as owners. The difference between fair value
of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains and losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
When the Group ceases to have control any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Joint arrangements
Under IFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor. Joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method. Under the equity method, interests in joint ventures are initially recognized at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the
joint venture (which includes any long-term interest that, in substance, forms part of the Group’s net investment
in the joint venture), the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.
Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
As a part of the Skangass acquisition, Gasum obtained control of an LNG liquefaction facility in Risavika that
legally is not held by Gasum (see Note 15, Acquisitions and disposals). Since the arrangement is an integral part
of the acquisition and Gasum is deemed to have control over the facility, it is fully consolidated in the Gasum
Group. The consolidation also includes the call option liability.

Foreign currency items
Items included in the financial statements of the each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in euros, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at reporting dates. Non-monetary items are translated at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions in foreign
currencies and translation of monetary items are recognized in the income statement. Foreign exchange gains and
losses arising from transactions in the ordinary course of business are included in respective items above
operating profit. Translation differences related to financial items are recognized in financial income and expense.
The functional currency in all group companies is euro.

Intangible assets
The acquisition method is applied to account for business combinations. Goodwill is recognized at the excess of
cost over the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired. Goodwill is
subjected to annual impairment testing. Towards this end, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (CGU).
Goodwill is measured at original cost less impairment. Any impairment is recognized as an expense in the income
statement.
Other intangible assets comprise of intangible rights and other long-term expenditures. Intangible rights comprise
primarily of patents and licenses. Other long-term expenditures include mainly compensation allowances for land
owners for redeeming a long-term property usage right for the accommodation of the transmission pipelines and
measurement stations as well as for other limitations on the property usage arising from the transmission
pipelines.
Intangible assets are originally recognized at fair value at the acquisition date when the cost of the item can be
measured reliably and it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group.
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the items over their estimated
useful lives, which in the case of patents and licenses is three to five years.
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Compensation allowances to the land owners are accounted for as intangible assets with indefinite useful life. They
are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
The assets’ residual values and useful lives and amortization method are reviewed at minimum at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted, if appropriate, to reflect changes in the expected economic benefits. The
amortization of intangible assets is commenced when the asset is ready for its intended use.

Tangible assets
Tangible assets comprise primarily of the transmission and distribution networks for natural gas as well as related
installations and buildings, LNG distribution terminals as well as other machinery and equipment. Tangible assets
are recognized at historical cost less depreciation and impairment charges. The cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the tangible asset. The cost for self-constructed assets include material
costs, directly attributable employee benefit costs and other directly attributed costs arising from constructing the
asset ready for its intended use. The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying tangible asset are capitalized as part of the asset’s acquisition cost. In addition, the
cost includes any estimated costs arising from obligations to dismantle, remove and restore the items of property,
plant and equipment.
In case the tangible asset comprises of multiple assets with different useful lives each asset is accounted and
measured as separate component. Any replacement costs are capitalized and remaining value in the balance sheet
at the date of replacement is written off.
Subsequent costs arising from additions, replacement or maintenance of the asset, are included in the tangible
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Maintenance costs, meaning repair and overhaul
costs are charged to the income statement when incurred. Government grants received have been recognized as
deductions to the acquisition cost.
Assets are depreciated straight-line over their estimated useful lives. Land and water areas are not depreciated.
The estimated useful lives are:
2014
10–65 years*
20–40 years
3–25 years

Buildings and constructions
Other tangible assets
Machinery and equipment

2013
15–65 years*
20–40 years
3–25 years

* Not applicable to the cushion gas accounted for as a tangible asset which is depreciated only when the expected
residual value is lower than the acquisition cost or carrying value at reporting date. Cushion gas implies the lowest
quantity of gas required for the flawless function of the gas transmission
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted, when necessary, to reflect changes in expected economic benefits. Depreciations
are commenced when the asset is ready for its intended use.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
Goodwill and intangible assets with infinite useful lives are tested annually for impairment whenever there are
indications of impairment. Impairment testing is carried out at least once a year, however. If any such indications
exist the recoverable amount of respective asset is assessed.
Tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment only when indications exist that
their carrying value may be impaired.
Recoverable amount is additionally assessed for the following asset classes regardless whether indications of
impairment exist: Goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets in process.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Value in use
refers to the expected future net cash flows derived from the asset or cash generating unit in question that have
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been discounted to net present value. Discount factor is the pre-tax interest rate reflecting market view of the
time value of money and any specific risks related to the asset.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying value exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment is expensed immediately in the profit and loss. The useful life of a asset is reviewed in
connection with recognition of impairment losses. Prior impairments of non-financial assets, other than goodwill,
are reversed in case there has been a change in the estimates used for assessing the recoverable amount.
Impairments are, however, not reversed in excess of the carrying value of the asset excluding the impact of the
impairment.

Leasing contracts in which the Group is lessee
Leases of tangible assets in which the significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
Group are classified as financial leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s commencement at the lower
of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The assets acquired
under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term. Periodic
lease payments are allocated between the finance expenses and reduction in the leasing liability to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. Variable leases are
recognized as expenses during the periods they are incurred. Leasing liabilities for finance leases are included
within financial liabilities.
The Group’s LNG transport carriers are classified as finance leases when the term of the lease covers the majority
of the vessel’s useful life. Carriers classified as finance leases are typically leased for a period of 25 years.
Leases in which the significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease. Incentives received are deducted from operating lease payments
over the period of obtained benefits from the use of leased asset.
When a lease includes both land and property components, the classification into finance or operating lease is
made individually for each of the component.

Leasing contracts in which the Group is lessor
Assets leased by the Group where the significant portion of risks and rewards have been materially transferred to
the lessee are accounted for as finance leases and recognized in the balance sheet in receivables. The receivable is
initially recognized at the present value of the lease contract. The financial income included in the lease is
recognized over the lease period so as to produce a constant rate of return over the lease period on the remaining
net investment.
Assets leased under other leases than finance lease are included in the tangible assets. The assets are depreciated
over their useful lives similarly to tangible assets held for own use.
Leasing income is recognized in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Arrangements which may contain a lease
At the outset of the arrangement the Group assesses on the basis of the substance of the contract whether the
arrangement is a lease or whether it contains a lease. The arrangement is a leasing contract if the following
criteria are met:
a) execution of the arrangement is dependent on utilization of a specific asset or asset group, and
b) the arrangement establishes a right to use the asset.
In case the arrangement contains a lease, the basis of preparation described above is applied in respect to the
lease component. Relevant IFRS standards are applied to other components of the arrangement.
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Inventories
Inventories are stated the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the FIFO (first in, first
out) method. The cost excludes borrowing costs. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
Inventories include also the prepayments made under a long-term ”Take-or-pay” supply contract that is stated at
lower of cost and net realizable value. See also note 3 Significant accounting estimates and judgmental items and
note 24 Inventories.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets. Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale investments. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired and classification is determined at acquisition date.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified into this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. The Group acquires
derivatives for the purposes of trading. Assets in this category are classified as current assets, unless matured
over 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets, expect for maturities greater than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period in which case they are classified as non-current assets. Group’s loans and receivables
also include items ‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ within the balance sheet.

Available-for-sale investments
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends
to dispose of it within 12 months from the end of the reporting period. Group’s investments are included in this
category.

Recognition and measurement
Transaction costs are included in the original book value for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value, and
transactions costs are expensed in the income statement. Investments in financial assets which are not carried at
fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized to an amount including transaction costs. All purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade-date, being the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in the profit and loss as part
of other finance income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
The fair value adjustments of available-for-sale financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive income.
When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognized in equity are included in the income statement as ‘other operating income’ or ‘other operating
expenses’.

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank
overdrafts. In the consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings under current
liabilities.

Impairment of financial assets – Assets carried at amortized cost
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization, and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognized in the consolidated income statement. If a loan or held-tomaturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as improvement in the debtor’s credit
rating), the reversal of the previously recognized impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

Impairment of financial assets – Assets classified as available-for-sale
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses the criteria referred to above. In the
case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-forsale financial assets, the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss, is removed from
equity and recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in the consolidated income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through the consolidated income statement.
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Borrowings
Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognized in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date of a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss from remeasurement at fair value depends on the designation of the derivative contract. The derivatives used by the
group are highly effective in accordance with the approved risk management policy but hedge accounting is not
applied. Therefore unrealized gains and losses from changes in the fair value of derivative contracts is recorded in
the profit and loss at the end of each reporting period.
All derivate contracts are classified as financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and the gains
or losses resulting from movement in their fair values is presented under item “other operating expense/income”
in the income statement in respect of commodity derivatives and under financial income or expense in respect of
interest derivatives in the period incurred.

Equity
The Group classifies equity instruments on the basis of their nature into either equity or financial liabilities. An
equity instrument is any contract which contains the right to the entity’s assets after deducting all its liabilities.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue or redemption of shares are a shown in equity as a deduction
from the proceeds.
Dividend distribution proposed by the Board of Directors is not deducted from the distributable equity prior to the
approval of the Company’s ordinary shareholder meeting.

Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions for environmental restoration, asset retirement obligations, restructuring costs and legal claims are
recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation; and ta reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.

Post-employment benefits
The Group operates various post-employment schemes, including both defined benefit and defined contribution
schemes. Pension arrangements are managed through external pension and life insurance companies.
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity
(fund) and the Group retains no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions are recognized as employee benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
Statutory pension contributions are expensed in the year they are incurred. Pension schemes other than defined
contribution plans are defined benefit plans.
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Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement,
usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. The liability recognized
in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of
high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation. In countries where there is
no deep market in such bonds, the market rates on government bonds are used. Actuarial gains and losses arising
from experience adjustment and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Past service costs are recognized immediately in
statement of income.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received for good supplied and services rendered stated
net of indirect taxes and discounts. The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured and when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity. Revenue includes the
volume based excise tax payable on natural gas supplied for taxable use.
Natural gas as well as biogas supplied through the natural gas network are invoiced to customers montly
according to actual consumption. Revenue is recognized on the basis of the supply according to the supply
quantities indicated by the measuring equipment controlled by Gasum and the tariffs in effect at the time (Natural
Gas Pricing System).
Liquefied natural gas (LNG) is invoiced to customers according to deliveries and revenue is recognized on the basis
of deliveries. The time of delivery varies from customer to customer according to their respective contracts.
Gasum is the Finnish transmission network operator under the Natural Gas Market Act and obliged to maintain and
develop the network. Transmission services mean the wholesale gas transmission services of Gasum Corporation,
which fall under service provision. Revenue from transmission services are recognized to revenue on a straight-line
basis over a specified period as the transmission services flow to the customers on a continuous basis.
Gasum’s clients pay participation and connection fees when linked to the transmission and distribution network.
Participation fees are recognized to revenue over the expected life of the customer contract based on Gasum’s
accumulated experience. Connection fees are recognized to revenue when there is reasonable certainty that the
related economic benefits will flow to Gasum.
Appliances and systems sold to customers are invoiced upon delivery and allocated to the month in which the
delivery took place.

Research and development costs
Research and development costs are expensed in the period they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the income statement,
expect to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly to equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. The current
income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted at the balance sheet date. Tax receivable and
liability related to the taxes for the period are netted if and only when the Group has legally enforceable right to
offset the tax items and the Group will either effect the tax payment on net basis or realize the tax receivable and
pay the tax liability simultaneously.
Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts. Deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill or if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable income.
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Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for investments made in subsidiaries and joint arrangements, expect
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Major taxable temporary differences in the Group arise from the depreciation of tangible assets, from the fair
valuation of derivative contracts and defined benefit pension plans.
Deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
dates.
Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred income tax asset is not recognized if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable income. The Group assesses the recognition criteria
of deferred income tax assets respectively at the end of each reporting period.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset in the Group if and only when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax asset and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to set off deferred income tax assets and liabilities or realize
the tax receivable and pay the tax liability simultaneously on such future period during which a significant amount
of deferred income tax liabilities are expected to be paid or a significant amount of deferred income tax assets are
expected to be deducted.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established. Dividend distribution
proposed by the Board of Directors is not deducted from the distributable equity prior to the approval of
company’s ordinary shareholder meeting.

Government grants
Government grants are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants related to costs are deferred
and recognized into other operating income in the income statement over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate. Government grants relating to the acquisition of tangible
assets are deducted from the cost of the asset and recognized in the income statement by deducting depreciation
for the respective asset.

3. Significant accounting estimates and judgmental items
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates as well as management judgment in applying the accounting principles when preparing financial
statements. The estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The most significant estimates and assumptions and
judgmental items are discussed in more detail in the following.

”Take-or-Pay” prepayment related to the supply contract of natural gas
Gasum Corporation has a long-term supply contract with the Russian Gazprom Export. Extending until 2027, the
contract covers issues including annual quantity purchased and the minimum contracted annual quantity (Take-orPay). A prepayment on quantities below the minimum is paid and can be utilized in subsequent years in situations
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where the gas purchase volume exceeds the Take-or-Pay limit. Gasum’s balance sheet contains such prepayments
from the years 2009–2014 in a total of €188.7 million (2013: €82.7 million). The prepayment is reported under
inventories and stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Management expectations as to the extent to which the prepayment may be utilized in the future have a material
impact on the measurement of the Take-or-Pay prepayments. In management’s assessment of the prepayment,
regard is also had to changes in market conditions, the development of sales prices, and any changes in
contractual terms. Even in the event of differences between the prepayment made and the momentary price of
gas upon utilization of the prepayment, Gasum may always pass on the differences to its gas pricing, as the
pricing of natural gas is regulated.
The current supply contract allows gas price review on a three-year cycle. Under the current contract, gas must be
competitive in the Finnish market.

Pension benefits
The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial
basis using a number of assumptions. The discount rate is one of the significant assumptions in determining the
net cost (or net income) arising from pensions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount
of pension obligations.

Assumptions used for impairment testing of tangible assets and intangible assets
Significant assets in tangible assets and intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested for impairment.
Impairment testing is carried out utilizing value-in-use calculations which are based on forecast cash-flows and the
preparation of which requires management estimates on future cash-flows. The nature of the estimates depends
on which business the tested assets belong to. The gas transmission business is regulated and monitored by
domestic authorities and the cash-flows include estimates on the future development of the regulation. Most
significant judgments regarding the supply of energy relate to future cash-flows and the discount factor.
At December 31, 2014 Gasum had goodwill of €119.5 million recorded on its balance sheet (2013: €0.00 million).
Further information on the sensitivity of the recoverable amount to changes in assumptions is provided under Note
16, Goodwill.

Income taxes
The Group companies are liable to income tax in Finland, Sweden and Norway. The utilization of tax losses calls for
considerable judgment on the part of management and impacts on the extent to which deferred income tax assets
are recognized for these. The Group’s balance sheet at December 31, 2014 includes a deferred income tax asset of
€4.2 million recognized for adopted losses (2013: €0.00 million). Further information regarding taxes is presented
under Note 14, Income taxes, and Note 26, Deferred income tax.

4. Management of financial risks and capital structure
Financial risk management
Gasum’s financial risks related to business are market risk (including interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. Risk management is carried out by the Group’s finance department together with business
planning and operations.

Market risk – Commodity risk
The contract price of Gasum’s supply contract of natural gas has tied to the price indexes. These indexes are the
price of heavy fuel oil HFO1S, index E40 published by Statistics Finland which represents Finnish energy markets,
and the price describing the price of coal. For invoicing, from above mentioned indexes, have been included a sixGasum – Financial Statements 2014
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month average price. Same indexes included in the procurement contract are also applied to the selling contracts
of natural gas that entail a natural hedge of the price risk. Clients are able to hedge the variable oil or coal
component through a price hedge product whereupon Gasum enters into a mirror contract with an external
counterparty. For oil, the hedge is always the same in both contracts. For coal, a coal derivative available from
market is used. This derivative is not completely the same as the h-value in the customer contract. In these
instances the price of hedging includes a risk premium by which the basis risk is covered.
The Group does not apply hedge accounting to these derivative contracts.

Interest rate risk
The business of Gasum is capital intensive, and group has regular need to obtain financing. The current loan
portfolio consists mainly of long-term euro-denominated financing. Long-term financing consists mainly of loans to
financial institutions while short-term financing consists of the sale of commercial papers. Seasonal fluctuations in
working capital have been trying to finance with own liquidity.
Gasum Corporation’s interest rate risk arises primarily from variable-rate long-term borrowings. Gasum strives to
reduce the fluctuation of interest expenses in the statement of income by using derivative contracts to hedge
some its interest payments. Gasum Corporation does not apply hedge accounting to interest rate contracts.
Strategies for interest rate management are continuously developed in order to find an optimal ratio between risks
and finance expenses. The funding is raised mainly by the parent entity and further allocated to subsidiaries
through different internal finance arrangements.
At December 31, 2014 the interest-bearing debt of Gasum totaled €738.8 million (2013: €164.4 million). Interestbearing debt includes borrowings from financial institutions, finance lease liabilities, call option liability, and the
debt having to with accounting for the liquefaction facility (for more details, see Note 15, Acquisitions and
disposals).
The average duration of Gasum's debt portfolio in the end of 2014 was 2.4 years (2013: 2.9).

Currency risk
The operating cash flows of Gasum are primarily denominated in euro and no currency transaction risk thus arises.
Currency translation risk also does not arise, as equity and debt investments outside the Eurozone are made in a
Group (Skangass AS) whose operating currency is the euro.

Credit risk
All customers of Gasum’s energy trade are with high credit rating. Customer base of Group’s energy services is
quite large, consisting of more than 30,000 customers when credit risk will be decreased due to this. The credit
risk related to the trade receivables of the Company is very low.
Gasum Corporation concludes derivative contracts for hedging purposes only with reliable counterparties. The
lowest long-term credit rating held by any current counterparty is A. The vast majority of the current interest rate
hedges mature by March 2017.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the Group’s ability to satisfy its monetary obligations. Failure to address and prepare for
liquidity risk may place the Group in a situation in which financing is unavailable altogether or only available at a
cost that is incommensurate with the company’s credit rating. Liquidity risk management seeks to ensure
reasonable financing costs and the continuity of operations.
Gasum manages liquidity and refinancing risks by cash and cash equivalents and overdraft facilities entered into
with key partner banks. The Group must always have available cash and cash equivalents or comparable
marketable securities and undrawn overdrafts in an amount sufficient to cover all borrowings maturing within the
next 12 months. As at 31 December 2014 the Company had a sufficient unused overdraft limit to satisfy this
target. At December 31, 2014 the Group’s overdraft limit remained undrawn in the amount of €144 million.
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The Group’s borrowings from financial institutions are subject to a financial covenant, specifically the gearing ratio.
The covenant is reviewed on a quarterly basis. The gearing ratio is calculated according to Finnish Accounting
Standards and thus cannot be calculated in a comparable manner from the IFRS financial statements. No covenant
breaches occurred during the reporting period. The Group’s lesser borrowings furthermore involve covenants
including operating margin, net debt to operating margin, operating margin to interest expenses, and equity ratio.
There have been no breaches of these covenants either.
The next table analyzes the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. Derivative financial liabilities are included in the analysis if their contractual maturities are essential
for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. The maturity of derivative financial assets is also disclosed.

At December 31, 2014
€ thousands
Loans from financial institutions
Trade payables
Derivative financial instruments
Finance lease liabilities
Total

At December 31, 2013
€ thousands
Loans from financial institutions
Trade payables
Derivative financial instruments
Finance lease liabilities
Total

At December 31, 2014
€ thousands
Derivative financial assets

Less than 1
year

1–2 years

2–5 years

More than 5
years

7,655

282,490

14,558

5,869
4,947
18,471

4,484
12,236
299,210

27,655
42,213

114,441
229,185
19,150
4,833
367,609

Less than 1
year

1–2 years

2–5 years

82,363

10,591

4,457
43
86,863

10,591

71,448
102,320
1,742
180
175,690

Less than 1
year
7,890

1-2 years
3,059

2–5 years
67

More than 5
years

0

More than 5
years

Total
419,144
229,185
29,503
49,671
727,503

Total
164,402
102,320
6,199
223
273,144

Total
11,015

Sensitivity analyses for market risk
Sensitivity analyses for commodity risk
Sensitivity analyses for significant commodity risks have been presented in the following. In the calculation of
price risk of oil, the position includes outstanding oil derivatives with an external counterparty. The impact of the
increase or decrease of oil price to the Group’s income statement has been presented in the table below. The
figures are based on the assumption that oil price had increased/decreased by 10 percent with all other variables
held constant. The figures do not present the real impact on the Group’s income statement because they don’t
include the mirror fair value change of oil price in sales agreements.

10 percent increase in oil price would affect to the income statement
10 percent decrease in oil price would affect to the income statement
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31.12.2014

31.12.2013

€2.2 million
€-2.2 million

€8.1 million
€-5.7 million

Sensitivity analyses for interest rate risk
Interest rate sensitivity is analyzed by presuming an increase of 1 percentage point in market rates and its impact
on Group performance. The impact on performance arises from the interest flow risk on borrowings and interest
rate hedges and from changes in the fair value of interest rate contracts. All borrowings and interest rate contracts
at period-end are included in the calculation. The impact of taxes is excluded from the sensitivity analysis.

Impact on performance of increase of 1 percentage point in short-term market
interest rates

31.12.2014

31.12.2013

€-0.9 million

€2.3 million

Capital management
Capital management in the Group is based on different business scenarios and sensitivity analyses in those as well
as the evaluation of essential risks concerning the Group. In addition to business risks, Gasum reserves adequate
capital to cover the balance sheet interest rate risk and possible impairments. The following table presents
Gasum’s net debt and gearing, which the Company monitors as a part of its capital management.
Capital management

2014

2013

Total borrowings

738,830

164,402

Cash and equivalents*

-82,449

-5,476

Net debt

656,381

158,926

Total equity

460,295

426,085

Total capital

1,116,676

585,011

143 %

37 %

1 000 €

Gearing ratio

* Cash in hand and short-term deposits with banks (liquid deposits of less than three months’ maturity)

Interest-bearing debt includes borrowings from financial institutions, finance lease liabilities, call option liability,
and the debt having to with consolidation of the liquefaction facility.

5. Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments
€ thousands

At December 31, 2014
Assets
Liabilities

At December 31, 2013
Assets
Liabilities

Interest rate swap (hierarchy level 2)
Oil derivatives (hierarchy level 2)
Coal derivatives (hierarchy level 1)
Total

10,999
16
11,015

3,282
26,221
29,503

3,741
2,432
26
6,199

Less non-current portion:
Interest rate derivatives (hierarchy level 2)
Oil derivatives (hierarchy level 2)
Coal derivatives (hierarchy level 1)
Non-current portion

3,125

3,237
7,116

3,741
716

3,125

10,353

4,457

Current portion

7,890

19,150

1,742
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At the reporting date instruments with positive fair value have been recognized in the balance sheet as assets and
instruments with negative fair value has been recognized as liabilities. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
income statement. The net amount of derivative instruments are reported under Offsetting financial instruments.
The maturities of derivative instruments are reported under Liquidity risk.

The nature of the derivative contracts
Interest rate derivatives
As at December 31, 2013 the nominal values of the outstanding interest rate derivatives were €183.6 million
(December 31, 2013: €183.0 million; December 31, 2012: €187.3 million). Gains and losses on interest rate
swaps are recognized in the consolidated income statement within finance expenses until the repayment of the
bank borrowings. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future
cash flows based on observable yield curves.

Commodity derivatives
The nominal values of the outstanding oil derivatives were €125.8 million at the year-end (2013: €63.8 million).
The nominal values of the outstanding coal derivatives at the reporting date were €546 thousand (2013: €203
thousand).
The fair values of commodity derivatives are based on quotes at the reporting date. The fair values of oil
derivatives are calculated by using the quotes for fuel oil swap contracts in the OTC market. The fair values of coal
derivatives are calculated by using publicly quoted market prices. The fair values of OTC commodity derivatives
are calculated as the sum total of the derivative contracts’ future cash flows.

Fair value estimation
Financial instruments valued at fair value classified according to the valuation method. Hierarchy levels used have
been determined as follows:
a) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities
b) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)
c)

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs)

Offsetting of derivative financial instruments
Offsetting of derivative
financial instruments
At December 31, 2014

Gross
amounts
before
offsetting

Gross
offset

Gross amounts of
amounts recognized
financial
instruments

€ thousands
Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments
Commodity derivatives
Total
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Interest rate derivatives
Commodity derivatives
Total

Related
financial
instruments
Net amount
not set off in
the balance
sheet

13,509

2,494

11,015

0

11,015

13,509

2,494

11,015

0

11,015

3,282
28,715

0
2,494

3,282
26,221

0
0

3,282
26,221

31,997

2,494

29,503

0

29,503
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Offsetting of derivative
financial instruments
At December 31, 2013

Gross
amounts
before
offsetting

Gross amounts
offset

Gross amounts of
recognized
financial
instruments

€ thousands

Related
financial
instruments
not set off in
the balance
sheet

Net amount

Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments
Commodity derivatives

21

-2

19

0

19

Total

21

-2

19

0

19

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Interest rate derivatives
Commodity derivatives

3,741
2,252

0
-2

3,741
2,250

0
0

3,741
2,250

Total

5,993

-2

5,991

0

5,991

6. Revenue
Revenue by business
€ thousands
Energy trade
Energy services
Transmission services
LNG
Total

Revenue by region
€ thousands
Home land (Finland)
Other Europe
Total

2014

2013

730,011
37,889
203,056
108,086
1,079,042

899,220
20,769
229,714
0
1,149,702

2014

2013

972,546
106,496
1,079,042

1,149,263
438
1,149,702

The excise tax included in the selling price of the tax delivered taxable use, €57.4 million (2013: €55.4 million),
has been recorded in the net sales.

7. Other operating income
Other operating income
€ thousands
Rental income
Gain on sale of tangible assets
Income from derived products
Other income
Total

Other income includes indemnity of €1.1 million under a business interruption policy.
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2014

2013

150
117
12,309
6,532
19,108

201
125
0
641
967

8. Materials and services
8.Materials and services
€ thousands
Total materials and supplies
External services
Total

2014

2013

951,720
1,942

1,040,366
0

953,662

1,040,366

The excise tax included in the purchase price of the tax delivered for taxable use, €59.4 million (2013: €56.6
million), has been recorded in the materials and services.

9. Personnel expenses
Personnel expenses
€ thousands
Salaries and benefits
Pension expenses - defined contribution plans
Pension expenses - defined benefit plans (see note 33)
Other expenses
Social security costs
Total

Key management compensation
€ thousands
CEO's**
Defined benefit supplementary pension of CEO**
Members of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board*
Total

2014

2013

22,919
3,389
549
0
1,461
28,318

16,679
2,927
749
-1,440
861
19,776

2014

2013

478
195
163
836

593
779
148
1 521

* Compensation for service as members of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board
** The salary and remuneration of the CEO includes the salary of both the current and the former CEO.
**The defined benefit supplementary pension is supplementary pension paid to the retired CEO. The current CEO does not have a defined benefit plan.

Personnel on average
Personnel on average
Office workers
Workers
Total

2014

2013

241
78
319

193
80
273

2014

2013

26,056
9,223
258
35,536
3,615

19,627
6,770
256
26,653
751

10. Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization
€ thousands
Depreciation on buildings
Depreciation on machinery
Depreciations on other tangible goods
Depreciation on tangible goods
Depreciation on intangible assets
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Amortization
Total

9,552
48,704

0
27,404

2014

2013

2,466
1,818
13,770
31,352
12,955
62,361

1,742
1,472
7,885
0
11,479
22,578

11. Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses
€ thousands
Rents
Maintenance costs
External services
Losses on derivatives
Other
Total

12. Auditor’s fees
Auditor’s fees
€ thousands
Statutory fees
Audit statements
Tax services
Other services and fees
Total

2014

2013

205
15
0
485
705

51
0
0
414
465

13. Finance income and finance expenses
Finance income

2014

2013

€ thousands
Interest income on other non-current receivables
Fair value gains on derivative financial instruments
Other finance income

165
459
217

171
79
87

Total

841

337

2014

2013

3,973
0
2,550
4,519

5,638
661
0
9

11,042

6,308

-10,201

-5,972

Finance expenses
€ thousands
Interest expenses on borrowings
Fair value losses on derivative financial instruments
Finance lease costs
Other finance expenses
Total
Net finance income and expenses
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14. Income tax expense
Income tax expense
€ thousands
Current tax
Taxes for previous periods
Change in deferred taxes
Total

2014

2013

4,770
-3
-5,251
-483

5,880
3
-9,419
-3,535

Income taxes recognized in consolidated income statements differ from the income taxes calculated using the Finnish tax rate as
follows:
Income tax expense
€ thousands
Profit before income tax
Mathematical tax based on Finland's tax rate total
Effect of different tax rates applied to foreign subsidiaries
Tax exempt income
Non-deductible expenses
Unrecognized deferred tax receivables on losses
Taxes for previous periods
Effect of tax rate change
Share of associated company's profit
Total tax charge
Effective tax rate

2014

2013

-5,253
-1,051
-698
-178
708
609
0
0
126
-483

34,533
8,461
0
36
0
0
3
-12,068
33
-3,535

9.2%

-10.2%

The tax charge / credit relating to components of other comprehensive income is as follows:
The tax charge / credit relating to components of other
comprehensive income is as follows:
€ thousands

2014

Tax charge (-)
/ credit

Before tax
Re-measurements of post-employment benefit liabilities
Translation differences
Other comprehensive income

-2,373
-2,373

The tax charge / credit relating to components
of other comprehensive income is as follows:
€ thousands

475
475

After tax
-1,898
-1,898

2013

Tax charge (-)
/ credit

Before tax
Re-measurements of post-employment benefit liabilities
Impact of change in Finnish tax rate on deferred tax
Translation differences
Other comprehensive income

-441
0
-441
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88
-117
0
-29

After tax
-353
-117
0
-470

15. Company acquisition and disposal
Acquisition 2014
On May 2, 2014 Gasum acquired a 51% majority of the Norwegian company Skangass AS and its subsidiaries
(Skangass) from the Lyse Group. Skangass is a supplier of liquefied natural gas (LNG). LNG is supplied to
customers utilizing Skangass’s distribution channels, terminals, tankers and road tankers.
As part of the arrangement, Gasum and the Lyse Group entered into an option arrangement which gives the Lyse
Group a put option and Gasum a call option for 15.6% of the shares of Skangass AS. The exercise of the option
would result in Gasum owning 66.6 % of Skangass.
Owing to the fixed exercise price of the put option, management considers that the risks and rewards of ownership
have transferred to Gasum and in the IFRS balance sheet, the option is therefore accounted for as a liability and a
reduction in non-controlling interest.
As part of the Skangass acquisition, Gasum and the Lyse Group signed a tolling agreement under which Skangass
is obliged to purchase the full annual LNG production capacity of 300,000 tonnes of Risavika LNG Production AS.
The fixed contract period is 15 years, with an option to extend the contract period by another five years. The
parties have agreed on an option arrangement where Gasum has a purchase option for the shares of Risavika LNG
Production AS. If Gasum decides to exercise its option, the Lyse Group is obliged to sell the shares to Skangass.
The Lyse Group may not sell its annual production or the asset to a third party during the period of validity of the
agreement. Because a considerable share of the value of the underlying asset is covered by the non-cancellable
lease payments, because Risavika LNG Production AS does not have other assets or operations and because
Gasum’s purchase option is priced at enterprise value and the arrangement is an integral part of the Skangass
acquisition, Gasum has consolidated the asset and recognized the corresponding option liability equaling the fair
value of the option at the date of acquisition.
The acquisition is part of Gasum’s strategy of improving access to LNG in Finland and achieving a strong position
in the growing Nordic LNG market. Provisional goodwill of €119.5 million arising from the acquisition is attributable
to the geographical presence of Skangass in the Nordic LNG market, economies of scale expected from the
combination of the operations of Skangass and Gasum’s existing LNG business, and the expected future growth of
the market.
None of the goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.
The following table summarizes the amounts of the consideration paid, the fair values of the assets acquired, the
liabilities assumed and the non-controlling interest at the acquisition date. The figures apply to both Skangass and
Risavika and include the tolling agreement as well as the purchase option. The figures are provisional, and the
method of accounting may be specified further during the 12-month review period following the date of
acquisition.
The items reported in the financial statements have been adjusted for the specified investments costs of the
terminal under construction and for specifications in the amounts of provisions on the balance sheet at the
acquisition date.
Provisional consideration at May 2, 2014
€ thousands
Cash and cash equivalents
Gasum LNG Oy’s shares
Option dept
Total

141,479
20,608
279,615
441,702

Recognized provisional amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Cash and cash equivalents
Tangible assets
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Inventories
Accounts receivable and other current assets
Other non-current liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liability
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3,030
359,871
85,950
7,601
4,511
37,029
50,390
21,678
21,825

Trade payables and other current liabilities
Advances received
Current tax assets
Other
Total identifiable net assets acquired
Carrying value of assets in Gasum LNG Ltd placed as contribution into Skangass AS
Non-controlling interest
Goodwill
Total

38,718
6,067
854
2,947
361,407
19,640
-58,792
119,447
441,702

The costs at €2.6 million relating to the acquisition have been charged to the consolidated income statements,
€1.0 million for the six-month period ended June 30 and €1.6 million for previous accounting periods.
The fair value of the shares in Gasum LNG Ltd, which is part of the consideration paid, is based on the enterprise
value of Gasum LNG Ltd on a debt and cash free basis. The consideration was settled by Skangass AS issuing such
a number of new shares to Gasum that Gasum, following the Skangass transaction and the issue of new shares,
holds in aggregate 51% of the issued and outstanding shares in Skangass AS.
The put option gives the Lyse Group the right to sell and Gasum the obligation to purchase 15.6% of the shares of
Skangass AS. The call option gives Gasum the right to purchase and the Lyse Group the obligation to sell 15.6 %
of the shares of Skangass AS. Totaling €49.6 million, the final redemption value of the option is based on a call
option value corresponding to the enterprise value of Skangass at the acquisition date. The discount factor used is
the interest rate based on the ten-year Finnish government bond.
The call option gives Gasum the right to purchase and the Lyse Group the obligation to sell 100% of the shares of
Risavika LNG Production AS. The final redemption value of the option is based on the enterprise value, which is
determined using the EV/EBITDA valuation multiple applied on the EBITDA. Minimum enterprise values have been
fixed for 2015 and 2016. Should Gasum exercise its call option, Gasum will be obliged to finance the acquisition of
Risavika LNG Production AS by Skangass.
The fair value of trade receivables (€26.3 million) and other receivables totals €37.0 million. The contractual
amount for trade receivables due is expected to be collectible.
Non-controlling interest is recognized at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognized
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets, resulting in non-controlling interest of €58.8 million.
Disposal 2014
Gasum Energiapalvelut Oy sold its shares in Gasum Eesti AS to AS Alexela Energy in September 2014. The net
assets disposed of were €3.9 million and a loss on disposal of €1.7 million was recognized on the transaction in the
consolidated income statement. Gasum Eesti had revenue of roughly €2 million in 2013.

16. Goodwill
Allocation of goodwill
Based on the management system at Gasum, the lowest level monitored by management is the business area. In
the Gasum Group, goodwill is allocated to cash generating units (CGU), which correspond to business areas in the
Gasum Group.
Goodwill
€ thousands
CGU: LNG business
Total
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2014

2013

119,447
119,447

0
0

Impairment testing
The recoverable amount of all CGUs is based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use the adopted
business plan. The forecast period is five years and the terminal value has been determined on the basis of the
final year. Cash flows beyond the forecast period are extrapolated using a long-term estimated growth rate of 2%,
which is judged suitable to a growing business. The forecast business volumes are based on the current structure
including investments that have already been started.
Future cash flows have been discounted by using Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC), a reflection of the
market view of the time value of money and the risks associated with the Gasum Group’s LNG business. The
parameters used to determine the discount rate (risk-free interest rate, risk factor, risk premium and capital
structure) are based on observed factors of oil and gas businesses engaging in equivalent or rival business
operations and on the market conditions prevailing at the end of 2014.
No impairment charges were recognized on the basis of the impairment testing performed.
Sensitivity analyses for key assumptions – discount rate, gross margin development and residual value growth
factor – were performed in connection with impairment testing. The key variables in the calculations are an
increase of 2 percentage points in the discount rate, poorer than estimated development of operating margin, and
decline of 2 percentage points in growth in the period beyond the forecast period. Examined individually, the
sensitivity analyses indicated no risk of impairment.
Discount rate used (before taxes)
CGU: LNG business

2014

2013

9.08%

0.00%

Reconciliation on Goodwill
Reconciliation on Goodwill
€ thousands
Cost at January 1
Additions
Disposals
Acquisitions (note 15)
Net book value at December 31

At December 31,
2014
0
0
0
119,447
119,447

At December
31,2013
0
0
0
0
0

17. Intangible assets
2014

Goodwill

Intangible
rights

Other
long-term
expenditure

Total

0
0
119,447
119,447

1,703
71
85,900
87,674

22,245
6,897
50
29,192

23,948
6,968
205,397
236,313

0
0

1,191
0

12,290
0

13,481
0

0
0

2,427
3,618

1,188
13,779

3,615
17,397

0
119,447

512
84,055

9,955
15,413

10,467
218,915

1 000 €
Cost at January 1
Additions
Businesses acquired
Cost at December 31
Accumulated amortization and impairment at January 1
Depreciations
Accumulated depreciations and impairment at
December 31
Accumulated amortization and impairment at January 1

Net book value at January 1, 2014
Net book value at December 31, 2014
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Goodwill

Intangible
rights

Other
long-term
expenditure

Total

Cost at January 1
Additions
Businesses acquired
Cost at December 31

0
0
0
0

1,294
409
0
1,703

20,858
1,376
11
22,245

22,152
1,785
11
23,948

Accumulated amortization and impairment at January 1
Depreciations
Accumulated depreciations and impairment at
December 31

0
0

1,059
132

11,671
619

12,730
751

0

1,191

12,290

13,481

Net book value at January 1, 2013
Net book value at December 31, 2013

0
0

235
512

9,187
9,955

9,423
10,467

2013
1 000 €

18. Tangible assets
2014
€ thousands

Land and water
areas

Buildings and
structures

Machinery and
equipment

Other
tangible
assets

Construction
in progress

Total

Cost at January 1
Additions

6,823
1

781,182
11,023

129,844
17,619

9,480
68

29,871
15,779

957,200
44,490

Disposals
Businesses acquired

0
1,172

-70
231,466

-99
43,669

0
0

0
82,508

-169
358,815

Businesses disposed of
Reclassifications

0
0

-3,507
20,627

0
61,881

0
0

-404
-85,508

-3,911
0

Cost at December 31

7,996

1,040,721

252,914

9,548

45,246

1,356,424

Accumulated amortization
and impairment at January 1

0

289,652

84,442

2,888

0

376,982

Depreciations
Amortization for the period

0
0

26,056
0

9,223
0

258
0

0
9,552

35,536
9,552

Disposals
Accumulated
depreciations and
impairment

0

981

0

0

0

981

0

316,689

89,411

3,146

9,552

423,051

6,823

491,530

45,402

6,592

29,871

580,219

7,996

724,032

159,249

6,403

35,694

933,375

at December 31
Net book value at
January 1, 2014
Net book value at
December 31, 2014

2013
€ thousands

Cost at January 1
Additions
Disposals
Reclassifications
Cost at December 31
Accumulated amortization and
impairment at January 1
Translation difference

Land and
water areas

Buildings and
structures

Machinery
and
equipment

Other
tangible
assets

Construction
in progress

Total

6,814
14

773,890
7,309

128,958
3,576

9,454
26

20,214
21,930

939,330
32,855

-5
0

-7
-10

-2,690
0

0
0

-12,273
0

-14,975
-10

6,823

781,182

129,844

9,480

29,871

957,200

0
0

270,034
-9

79,803
-2,131

2,632
0

0
0

352,469
-2,140
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Depreciations
Accumulated depreciations
and impairment

0

19,627

6,770

256

0

26,653

0

289,652

84,442

2,888

0

376,982

6,814

503,856

49,155

6,822

20,214

586,862

6,823

491,530

45,402

6,592

29,871

580,219

at December 31
Net book value at January 1, 2013
Net book value at December 31,
2013

Machinery and equipment include the following amount where the Group is a lessee under a finance lease:
€ thousands
Cost of capitalized finance lease at December 31
Accumulated depreciations and impairment at December 31
Net book value

2014
44,430
2,134
42,296

2013
634
420
214

The Group’s finance leases consist of trailers and carrier used for LNG transportation and of office machinery and
equipment. The lease period is 8 years for trailers and 25 years for the vessel. The office machinery contracts
have duration of 3–5 years.

19. Financial instruments

Financial instruments by category
Financial instruments by category
At December 31, 2014

Loans and
receivables

Assets at fair value
through profit and
loss

€ thousands
Assets as per balance sheet:
Available-for-sale financial assets
Derivative financial instruments
Trade and other receivables
Other long term receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

Liabilities at
amortized cost

Total

72
11,016
145,680
10,520
82,449
238,649

11,016

Liabilities at fair
value through profit
and loss

At December 31, 2014
€ thousands

72

Liabilities at
amortized cost

72
11,016
145,680
10,520
82,449
249,736

Total

Liabilities as per balance sheet:
Borrowings
Finance lease liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Trade and other payables excluding nonfinancial liabilities*
Total

419,144
49,671

419,144
49,671
29,503

595,146

595,146

1,063,961

1,093,465

29,503

29,503

*Excluding non-financial liability items
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Financial instruments by
category
At December 31, 2013
€ thousands
Assets as per balance sheet:
Available-for-sale financial assets
Derivative financial instruments
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

Loans and
receivables

Assets at fair value
through profit and
loss

Liabilities at
amortized cost

129,347
4,485
133,832

Liabilities at fair
value through profit
and loss

At December 31, 2014
€ thousands
Liabilities as per balance sheet:
Borrowings
Finance lease liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Trade and other payables excluding
non-financial liabilities*
Total

Total

76

76

76

129,347
4,485
133,908

Liabilities at
amortized cost

164,402
223

164,402
223
6,199

102,320

102,320

266,945

273,144

6,199

6,199

Total

*Excluding non-financial liability items

20. Available-for-sale investments
Available-for-sale investments
€ thousands
Unquoted investments in shares
Total

2014

2013

72
72

76
76

Available-for-sale investments are unquoted equity investments. The Group has valued these investments at cost
as it is not able to obtain prices with reliable ranges of variation.

21. Shares in joint ventures
Joint ventures of the Group at December 31, 2014
Joint ventures of the Group
At December 31, 2014

Place of business /
country of incorporation

% of ownership
interest

Measurement method

Biovakka Suomi Oy

Finland

20

Equity method

UAB GET Baltic Ltd

Lithuania

34

Equity method

Finland

25

Equity method

€ thousands

Manga LNG Oy
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Joint ventures of the Group
€ thousands
Net book value at January 1
Share of the periods profit
Addition
Net book value

2014

2013

2,289
-157
4,109
6,241

2,128
-40
201
2,289

Summarized financial information for joint ventures
Summarized financial
information for joint ventures
€ thousands
2014
Biovakka Suomi Oy
UAB GET Baltic Ltd
Manga LNG Oy
Total
2013
Biovakka Suomi Oy
UAB GET Baltic Ltd
Manga LNG Oy*
Total

Non-current
Assets
Liabilities

Current
Assets
Liabilities

Revenue

Profit/
Loss

Ownership
interest

12,771
189
12,136
25,097

6,013
0
0
6,013

1,655
3,808
718
6,180

4,865
3,635
9
8,509

8,335
150
0
8,486

974
-50
-1,337
-414

20%
34%
25%

13,860
214

6,735

1,714
17,263

6,267
17,065

8,072
100

46
-145

20%
34%
20%

14,074

6,735

18,977

23,332

8,172

-99

*As of the date of the consolidated financial statements of Gasum Corporation the financial information of Manga LNG Oy was not available. The
effect of Manga LNG Oy to the consolidated financial statements of Gasum Corporation is not material.

Biovakka Suomi Oy owns and operates two large biogas facilities which are situated in Turku and Vehmaa. The gas
produced in these facilities is consumed locally for the production of electricity and heat. In addition, the company
has sought permissions for and plans other biogas facility projects in Finland.
UAB GET Baltic is a Lithuanian company founded in 7 September 2012 which maintains a marketplace in the gas
market of Lithuania. The owners of the company are Gasum (34%), Lietuvos Dujos (34%) and Amber Grid (32
%). The trading began on 21 January 2013.
Manga LNG Oy was founded in 20 December 2013. The purpose of the company is to form the corporate
structures and agreements for the separate companies, around which the LNG terminal to be built in Tornio and
the related shipping operations as well as gas sourcing are incorporated.

22. Other non-current receivables
Other non-current receivables
€ thousands

Finance lease receivables – non-current portion
Deposit guarantees bank account
Other non-current receivables
Total

2014

2013

1,801

1,858

7,705

0

1,014

441

10,520

2,299

2014

2013

1,801

1,858

The current portion of finance lease receivables has been recorded under trade and other receivables.

Finance lease receivables – non-current portion
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57

57

1,858

1,914

2014

2013

202

202

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years

1,012

1,012

Later than 5 years

2,024

2,226

Gross investment in finance leases

3,238

3,440

Net present value of minimum lease payments

2014

2013

Finance lease receivables – current portion
Total

The minimum lease payments of finance lease receivables mature as follows:
Minimum lease payments
No later than 1 year

57

57

392

276

Later than 5 years

1,408

1,581

Total net present value of minimum lease payments

1,858

1,914

Unearned finance income

1,381

1,526

Gross investment in finance leases

3,238

3,440

2014

2013

138,684
1,254
5,685
57
145,680

126,966
537
1,787
57
129,347

No later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years

23. Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables
€ thousands
Trade receivables
Accrued income
Other receivables
Finance lease receivables – current portion
Total

The fair values of trade and other receivables equal their carrying amount. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
the carrying value of each receivable. The non-current portion of finance lease receivables, €1,801 thousand
(2013: €1,858 thousand) has been recorded in other non-current receivables (see note 22).
The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

€ thousands
Not due
Overdue by
Less than 3 months
Over 3 months
Total
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2014

2013

134,170

125,976

4,500
14
138,684

990
0
126,966

24. Inventories
Inventories
€ thousands
Product inventories
Other inventories
Prepayments (Take or pay)
Total

2014

2013

16,045
1,580
188,680
206,305

4,932
1,580
82,746
89,258

A “Take-or-pay” pre-payment of €188.7 million (2013: €82.7 million) related to the long-term natural gas
purchase agreement is included in the inventories.
The expensed cost of inventories which is included in the financial line item ‘materials and services’ was €951.7
million (2013: €1,040.4 million).

25. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
€ thousands
Cash at bank and in hand
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding bank overdrafts)

2014

2013

82,446
82,446

4,485
4,485

The current bank deposits are recorded in current assets in the row ‘Trade and other receivables’.
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the statement of cash flows:
Cash and cash equivalents
€ thousands
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term cash deposits
Total

2014

2013

82,446
3
82,449

4,485
991
5,476

The short-term cash deposits include liquid deposits with maturities less than three months.

26. Deferred income tax

€ thousands
Deferred tax assets:

2014

2013

Financial instruments

5,901

1,365

Pensions and employee benefits

1,693

1,320

Adopted losses

4,172

0

668

0

Fixed assets

2,107

0

Leasing

3,063

0

0

22

17,604

2,707

Reserves

Other temporary differences
Total
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At January 1

2,707

2,210

Businesses acquired

6,540

0

Recognized in income statement

7,883

526

474

-29

17,604

2,707

11,074

2,707

6,530

0

Recognized in equity
Book value at December 31
Netted from deferred tax liability*
Total, net
Deferred tax liabilities:
Fixed assets and depreciation difference

50,426

53,233

Financial instruments

2,375

0

Intangible commodity

21,225

0

Other temporary differences

0

762

74,026

53,995

At January 1

53,995

62,887

Businesses acquired

22,663

0

Recognized in income statement

-2,632

-8,892

74,026

53,995

Total

Book value at December 31
Netted from deferred tax liability*

11,074

2,707

Total, net

62,952

51,288

Deferred tax assets and liabilities, net

62,952

51,288

*Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities.
Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realization of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. Losses in respect of which deferred tax assets are
recorded in the financial statements at December 31, 2014 are subject to no expiration period.

27. Share capital

December 31, 2013
December 31, 2014

Number of
A shares

Number of
K shares

Total number of
shares

Share
capital

53,000,000
53,000,000

1
1

53,000,001
53,000,001

178,279
178,279

The share capital of Gasum Corporation is divided into A-series shares and one K-series share. The Finnish State
owns the K-share. Each share incorporates one vote when voting in the annual general meeting. Each share has
an equal right to the dividend and to Gasum’s assets. A permission of Gasum Corporation’s board of directors
must be granted to acquire the K-series share. If this permission is not granted the K-share shareholder has a
right to claim that the share is converted into an A-share.
The share capital of Gasum Corporation is €178,279,205.41. The share capital is fully paid. The shares do not
have a nominal value. According to the articles of association, the minimum share capital of Gasum Corporation is
€100,000,000 and the maximum share capital is €400,000,000 within the limits of which the share capital can be
raised or lowered without changing the articles of association.
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28. Provisions
Provisions
€ thousands
Provisions at start of period
Increase
Businesses acquired
Provisions used
Provisions at end of period

2014
0
0
21,678
-18,882
2,793

€ thousands
Analysis of total provisions at Dec 31

Non-current
2,793

Current
0

2013
0
0
0
0
0
Total
2,793

Provisions at end of period have to do with obligations to tear down customer terminals in Sweden and Norway.

29. Borrowings
Borrowings
€ thousands

2014

2013

Non-current:
Loans from financial institutions

304,703

92,953

Current:
Loans from financial institutions
Commercial papers

14,441
100,000

71,448
0

419,144

164,401

Total

All borrowings are denominated in euros from financial institutions that mature by December 2019 and their
average interest is 1.0% (2013: 0.8%). The Group also has a finance facility that matures in March 2019 which
the Group has withdrawn €11 million at the end of December 2014. The average interest rate of finance facility
has been 1.5% (2013: 0.8%).
The fair value of the current borrowings equals their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not
significant. The non-current borrowings are based on variable interest rate and their fair values do not significantly
deviate from their fair value.
Transaction costs have been added to the fair value of borrowings.
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30. Other non-current liabilities

Other non-current liabilities
€ thousands
Finance lease liabilities – non-current portion
Revenue recognition
Other liabilities*
Total

2014

2013

44,838
7,843
270,014
322,696

43
11,623
0
11,666

*Other borrowings include the debt having to do with accounting for the liquefaction facility and the call option liability related to subsidiary
acquisition.

The current part of finance lease liabilities, €1,114 thousand, is recorded in trade and other current payables (see
note 31). More information about the grouping of finance lease liabilities is presented in note 4 Management of
financial risks and capital structure.
The gross minimum lease payments of finance lease liabilities mature as follows:
Maturity of minimum lease payments
€ thousands
No later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Gross investment in finance leases

2014
5,475
21,291
86,562
113,327

2013
181
43
0
224

Maturity of net present value of minimum lease
payments
€ thousands
No later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Total net present value of minimum lease payments
Unearned finance expenses
Gross investment in finance leases

2014
4,833
17,182
27,655
49,671
63,655
113,327

2013
178
43
0
221
3
224

2014

2013

229,185
73,462
6,176
4,833
313,656

102,320
49,971
4,086
180
156,557

31. Trade and other current payables
Trade and other current payables
€ thousands
Trade payables
Other liabilities *
Accrued expenses
Finance lease liabilities – current portion
Trade and other current payables
* Other liabilities mostly consist of VAT liability.

The non-current part of finance lease liabilities, €44.8 million, is recorded in other non-current liabilities (see note
30). Accrued expenses mostly consist of different personnel-related provisions.
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32. Post-employment benefits
Finnish statutory pensions are insured with a pension insurance company and accounted for as a defined
contribution plan in the consolidated financial statements. The supplementary pension scheme provided by Gasum
is accounted for as a defined benefit plan.
Post-employment benefits
€ thousands
Balance sheet obligations for:

2014

2013

Defined pension benefits

8,465

6,576

Liability in the balance sheet

8,465

6,576

Income statement charge included in operating profit for*:
Defined pension benefits

549

749

Total

549

749

*The income statement charge included within operating profit includes current service cost, net interest income and expense, past service costs
and gains and losses on settlement and curtailment.

33. Defined benefit pension plans
Gasum operates a supplementary pension scheme which is classified as a defined benefit pension plan and
arranged with Mandatum Life Insurance Company. In the arrangement the targeted level of pension benefit is set
in percent terms whereby the benefit payable is not linked to the contribution payments Gasum makes into the
scheme. The Scheme was closed in 1994.
The amounts recognized in the balance sheet are determined as follows:
Defined benefit pension plans
€ thousands
Present value of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets
Deficit of funded plans

2014

2013

25,869
-17,404
8,465

22,030
-15,454
6,576

8,465

6,576

Liability in the balance sheet

The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows:
Present value
of defined
benefit
obligation

€ thousands
At January 1, 2014
Current service cost
Interest expense or income (-)
Remeasurements:
Gain (-)/loss from change in demographic assumptions
Gain (-)/loss from change in financial assumptions
Experience gains (-) /losses
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included
in interest expense or income
Contributions:

Net
defined
Fair value of
benefit
plan assets obligation

22,030
373
650

15,454
474

6,576
373
176

23,053

15,928

7,125

1,333

3,470
236
-1,333

3,470
236
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Employers
Plan participants
Payments from plans:
Benefit payments

1,033

At December 31, 2014

-890

-890

25,869

17,404

Present value
of defined
benefit
obligation

€ thousands
At January 1, 2013
Current service cost
Interest expense or income (-)
Remeasurements:
Gain (-)/loss from change in demographic assumptions
Gain (-)/loss from change in financial assumptions
Experience gains (-) /losses
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included
in interest expense or income
Contributions:
Employers
Plan participants
Payments from plans:
Benefit payments

-1,033

8,465

Net
defined
Fair value of
benefit
plan assets obligation

21,580
560
641

14,350
452

7,230
560
189

22,781

14,802

7,979

-766

-325
766

1,844

-1,844

-325

At December 31, 2013

-426

-426

22,030

15,454

6,576

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Discount rate
Inflation
Salary growth rate
Pension growth rate
Client bonus by the life insurance company

2014

2013

2.0%
2.0%
4.0%
2.1%
0.0%

3.0%
2.0%
4.0%
2.1%
0.3%

The discount rate at 31.12.2014 is 2.0% as in previous year it was 3.0%. This decrement caused a loss to defined
benefit obligation and correspondingly a gain to fair value of assets.
Furthermore the assumption of insurance company’s index – that has an effect to determination of assets – have
decreased from 0.3% to 0.0% and this produced a loss to assets. As a whole the total gain in assets is €1.3
million.
Assumptions regarding future mortality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics by
TyEL (K2008) mortality schedules and experience. These assumptions translate into an average life expectancy in
years for a pensioner retiring at age 65. Life expectancy is defined as the life span prediction of a person of a
particular age and its calculation is based on the Gomperz mortality model:
Life expectancy at age 65

Male

Female

Aged 45 at balance sheet date

20.6

26.4

Aged 65 at balance sheet date

19.0

24.7
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Sensitivity analysis of the defined
benefit obligation:

€ thousands
Discount rate

Financial period ending 31.12.2014

Present value
of defined
benefit
obligation

Fair value
of plan
assets

Net defined
benefit
obligation

Current service
cost

Net interest

2.00%

25,869

17,404

8,465

405

160

Discount rate + 0.50%

24,033

16,440

7,593

374

179

Discount rate – 0.50%

27,933

18,472

9,461

441

135

2.00%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0,0%

Discount rate + 0.50%

-7%

-6%

-10%

-8%

-11%

Discount rate – 0.50%

8%

6%

12%

9%

16%

Impact in percentages
Discount rate

Financial period ending 31.12.2014

€ thousands
Salary growth rate

Subsequent financial period

Present value
of defined
benefit
obligation

Fair value
of plan
assets

Net defined
benefit
obligation

Current service
cost

Net interest

4.00%

25,869

17,404

8,465

405

160

Salary growth rate + 0.50%

26,231

17,404

8,828

421

168

Salary growth rate – 0.50%

25,519

17,404

8,116

391

153

0%

Impact in percentages
Salary growth rate

4.00%

0%

0%

0%

0%

Salary growth rate + 0.50%

1%

0%

4%

4%

5%

Salary growth rate – 0.50%

-1%

0%

-4%

-4%

-4%

Financial period ending 31.12.2014

€ thousands
Pension growth rate

Present value
of defined
benefit
obligation

Fair value
of plan
assets

Subsequent financial period
Net defined
benefit
obligation

Current service
cost

Net interest

2.10%

25,869

17,404

8,465

405

160

Pension growth rate + 0.50%

27,514

17,404

10,111

429

193

Pension growth rate – 0.50%

24,377

17,404

6,973

385

131

Impact in percentages
Pension growth rate

2.10%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

Pension growth rate + 0.50%

6%

0%

19%

6%

21%

Pension growth rate – 0.50%

-6%

0%

-18%

-5%

-19%

When the life expectancy increases by one year the net defined benefit obligation increases by €403 thousand
(5%).
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The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit obligation (present value of the defined benefit obligation
calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period).
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the
previous period.
All pension arrangement related assets are included within the approved insurance contracts.
Through its defined benefit pension plans the group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which
are detailed below:

Changes in bond yields
A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the plan liabilities. In case the bond yields used as bases for
discount rates change, the group may need to change respectively the discount rates. This will impact both the net
defined benefit obligation as well as the amount of remeasurements recognized in the other comprehensive
income.

Inflation risk
Some of the group’s defined benefit obligations are linked to inflation and growth in the inflation rate will increase
the defined benefit obligation. In case the development of employer productivity lags behind the inflation, the
acceleration of inflation may increase the deficit of defined benefit plans.

Life expectancy
The majority of the plans’ obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life
expectancy will result in an increase in the plans’ liabilities. This is particularly significant in the UK plan, where
inflationary increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life expectancy.
Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending 31 December 2014 are €0.9 million.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 15 years and it is calculated using a discount
rate of 2%.
Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted pension benefits:
31.12.2014
€ thousands
Pension benefits
Total

Less than a
year
1,014
1,014

Between 1–5
years
3,930
3,930

Between 5–10
years
6,061
6,061

Over 10 years
24,814
24,814

Total
35,819
35,819

34. Contingent liabilities
Purchase agreement of natural gas

Gasum has engaged to a long-term purchase agreement of natural gas, in which a minimum annual delivered
quantity of natural gas is agreed along with the agreed quantity of delivery. In case the Company will not use the
minimum annual delivered quantity of the gas, the Company will pay a pre-payment for the difference which gives
the Company a right to receive the unused amount of the agreed quantity of the gas in later years. The right is
unlimited in terms of time.
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35. Guarantees given and contingent liabilities

€ thousands
Guarantees given on own behalf:
Pledges
Contingent liabilities and other commitments *
Total

2014

2013

182
35,155
35,337

233
4,354
4,587

*Includes guarantee to bank for obligations related to vessel leased under long-term charterparty.

Gasum Corporation has issued a parent company guarantee on behalf of Skangass Ltd for performance of supplier
obligations under fuel supply framework agreement between Skangass Ltd and Hansel Oy.
The shares in Skangass Terminal AB and Skangass Oy have been pledged to the Group as security.
Skangass AS, Skangass Terminal AB and Skangass Ltd have issued a guarantee of a maximum of €250 million as
security on the loan. At the reporting date, the amount of the loan was €49 million.
Operating lease commitments

€ thousands
No later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Total

2014

2013

721
493
0
1,214

514
718
0
1,232

36. Related parties
Related parties of the Group are (a) joint ventures; (b) management of the Company including members and a
secretary of the Board of Directors of Gasum Corporation, members of the Supervisory Board of Gasum, CEO and
Executive Board (key persons in the management team) and their close family members and the companies in
which they or their close family members have control and (c) owners of Gasum Corporation and their Group
companies (d) non-controlling interests in Group companies.
Gasum Corporation is the parent company of the Gasum Group. Transactions between the Group and subsidiaries
have been eliminated in consolidation and they are not included in the amounts of this note. Transactions between
other companies belonging to related party have been specified in the table below. Transactions with the related
parties are carried out on market terms.

Transactions with related parties
Transactions with
related parties
2014
€ thousands
Joint ventures
Owners of Gasum
Management of the Company
Total

Purchases of
goods and
services

Receivables

160
73,141

802,876

0

0

184,306

73,301

802,876

0

0

184,306

Sales of goods
and services
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Finance
income and Liabilities
expenses

Transactions with
related parties
2013
€ thousands

Sales of goods
and services

Purchases of
goods and
services

Receivables

71,141

982,304

8,030

71,141

982,304

8,030

Joint ventures
Owners of Gasum
Management of the Company
Total

Finance
income and
expenses

Liabilities

17

Management´s employee benefits
€ thousands
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Total

91,328
17

91,328

2014

2013

1,641

1,966

549

779

2,190

2,745

37. Group companies
The following summarizes the subsidiaries and joint ventures belonging to the Group as at December 31, 2014. All
group companies are related parties of the Group.
Parent company
Country of
incorporation
Finland

Gasum Corporation

Subsidiaries

Gasum Energiapalvelut Oy
Gasum Paikallisjakelu Oy
Gasum Tekniikka Oy
Gas Exchange Ltd
Helsingin Kaupunkikaasu Oy
Finngulf LNG Oy
Skangass AS
Skangass Terminal AB
Skangass Terminal Gävle AB
Skangass Ltd

Country of
incorporation
Finland
Finland
Finland
Finland
Finland
Finland
Norway
Sweden
Sweden
Finland

Group´s
ownership
interest (%)
100
100
100
100
100
100
51
51
51
51

% of the
voting rights
100
100
100
100
100
100
51
51
51
51

Country of
incorporation
Finland
Lithuania
Finland

Group´s
ownership
interest (%)
20
34
25

% of the
voting rights
20
34
25

Joint ventures

Biovakka Suomi Oy
UAB GET Baltic Ltd.
Manga LNG Oy
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GASUM CORPORATION STATEMENT OF INCOME
EUR
Note

1.1.−31.12.2014

1.1.−31.12.2013

REVENUE

1

958,178,738.37

1,134,314,075.19

Other operating income

2

6,930,286.11

627,711.82

Purchases during the period

3

-863,490,612.83

-1,038,015,906.31

Change in stocks

3

Materials and services
Raw materials and consumables
-158,903.06

-533,931.23

-863,649,515.89

-1,038,549,837.54

-9,859,777.96

-9,386,997.52

Personnel expenses
Wages and salaries

4

Social security costs

4

Pension costs

4

-2,711,047.80

-3,565,669.38

Other social security costs

4

-637,028.89

-461,112.66

-13,207,854.65

-13,413,779.56

-23,537,193.78

-26,949,402.17

Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation according to plan

5

Depreciation in non-current assets

5

Other operating expenses

6

OPERATING PROFIT

-9,552,774.47

0.00

-33,089,968.25

-26,949,402.17

-33,069,850.06

-23,364,034.80

22,091,835.63

32,664,732.94

160,953.51

Financial income and expenses
Income from other investments in non-current
assets
From Group companies

8

354,376.27

From others

8

6,860,644.31

67,609.75

7,215,020.58

228,563.26

Interest and other financial expenses
To Group companies

9

-166.46

0.00

To others

9

-5,229,534.34

-5,637,819.74

-5,229,700.80

-5,637,819.74

24,077,155.41

27,255,476.46

3,681,250.00

2,467,850.00

3,681,250.00

2,467,850.00

27,758,405.41

29,723,326.46

20,078,225.75

-5,900,000.00

-8,430,652.61

-5,871,918.90

39,405,978.55

17,951,407.56

PROFIT BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Extraordinary items
Extraordinary income
Group contributions

10

PROFIT BEFORE APPROPRIATIONS AND TAXES
Appropriations
Increase (-) decrease (+) in depreciation
difference
Income taxes

11

NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD
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GASUM CORPORATION BALANCE SHEET
EUR

31.12.2014

Note

31.12.2013

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets
Intangible rights
Other long-term expenditure
12

405,260.12

498,218.54

11,655,099.93

6,865,534.39

12,060,360.05

7,363 752.93

Tangible assets
Land and water
Buildings and structures
Machinery and equipment
Other tangible assets

5,263,560.66

6,824,333.66

376,401,494.88

399,196,597.92

34,008,097.42

40,277,959.16

5,956,670.22

6,591,332.71

15,700,829.76

26,757,345.67

437,330,652.94

479,647,569.12

170,548,486.70

7,435,992.13

Loan receivables from Group companies

5,316,863.68

8,495,796.15

Shares in associated companies

2,612,758.39

2,813,591.39

70,643.88

70,643.88

Advances paid and construction in progress
13
Financial assets
Shares in Group companies

Other shares
Other holdings

413,997.38

441,797.38

178,962,750.03

19,257,820.93

628,353,763.02

506,269,142.98

196,858,253.76

90,977,507.20

523,539.52

483,213.64

523,539.52

483,213.64

106,660,045.48

121,244,560.05

11,681,386.90

7,015,418.13

14
NON-CURRENT ASSETS, TOTAL
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories

15

Receivables
Long-term receivables
Other receivables
16
Short-term receivables
Trade receivables
From Group companies
From joint ventures

10,899.37

0.00

Other receivables

26,962.53

2,003,636.97

1,011,648.81

3,770,265.94

119,390,943.09

134,033,881.09

Prepayments and accrued income
17
Securities
Other securities
Cash and cash equivalents
CURRENT ASSETS, TOTAL
TOTAL ASSETS

18

2,538.98

2,538.98

19

70,069,993.48

4,211,490.62

386,845,268.83

229,708,631.53

1,015,199,031.85

735,977,774.51
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EUR

31.12.2014

31.12.2013

178,279,205.41

178,279,205.41

33,700.18

33,700.18

Retained earnings

27,054,170.74

27,016,763.50

Net profit for the period

39,405,978.55

17,951,407.56

66,460,149.29

44,968,171.06

20

244,773,054.88

223,281,076.65

21

164,430,335.25

190,609,937.63

260,000,000.00

92,953,425.32

260,000,000.00

92,953,425.32

Note

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital
Other reserves

EQUITY, TOTAL
ACCURED APPROPRIATIONS
Accumulated depreciation difference
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Loans from financial institutions

22
Current liabilities
Loans from financial institutions

100,000,000.00

71,448,491.25

Trade payables

195,702,792.33

101,781,561.21

2,673,225.92

3,684,607.70

43,843,248.90

49,724,681.30

Loans from Group companies
Other current liabilities
Accruals and deferred income
23
TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

3,776,374.57

2,493,993.45

345,995,641.72

229,133,334.91

605,995,641.72

322,086,760.23

1,015,199,031.85

735,977,774.51
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GASUM CORPORATION CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Cash flow statement
€ thousands

Note

1.1.−31.12.2014

1.1.−31.12.2013

24,077

27,255

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortization

5

23,537

26,949

Finance income and expenses

8,9

-1,985

5,409

Other adjustments
Cash flow before change in working capital

-64

93

45,565

59,706

5,025

40,376

Change in working capital
Increase/Decrease in current non-interest bearing trade receivables
Increase/decrease of inventories
Increase/Decrease in current non-interest bearing liabilities
Cash inflow from operating activities before financial items and
taxes
Interest paid and other payments from finance activities
Interest received

-105,881

303

100,582

-9,637

45,291

90,748

-4,927

-4,718

2,289

184

-4,183

-7,007

Cash flow before extraordinary items

38,470

79,207

Net cash flows from operating activities

38,470

79,207

-10,521

-18,524

Income taxes paid

11

Cash flows from investing activities
Investments of tangible and intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of tangible and intangible assets
Other investments
Loans given
Repayments of loan receivables
Net cash flows from investing activities

163

448

-142,907

-233

-375

0

2,700

1,000

-150,940

-17,309

210,000

14,267

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from current borrowings
Repayments of current loans
Decrease/increase in current loans
Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayments of non-current loans
Increase/decrease in non-current assets
Cash flow (net) from extraordinary finance items
Dividends paid and other profit sharing
Net cash flows from financing activities
Net decrease (-)/increase (+) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents transferred as part of transfer of
assets
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period
Gasum – Financial Statements 2014

56

-134,267

0

-1,107

1,135

260,000

0

-140,134

-47,181

0

525

2,468

3,159

-17,914

-40,015

179,046

-68,110

66,576

-6,212

-720

0

4,214

10,427

70,070

4,214

ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements of Gasum Corporation have been prepared according to Finnish accounting law and
principles. The financial statements have been prepared for the 12-month period from Jan 1 to Dec 31, 2014.
Revenue recognition principle
Revenue consists primarily of the sale of gas. Sales revenue is recognized upon delivery of gas. Service sales
revenue is recognized upon performance of service.
Research and development expenditure
Research and development expenditure is expensed in the year it is incurred.
Pensions
The parent company has obtained statutory pension cover from an external pension insurance company. Pension
costs are expensed in the year they are incurred.
Leasing
Leasing costs are recognized under other operating expenses. The remaining leasing payments are stated in the
notes under contingent liabilities. The leasing contracts have been concluded under ordinary terms.
Extraordinary income
Group contributions received are recognized under extraordinary income.
Taxes
Taxes include current income tax. Taxes for previous periods are included in income taxes in the income
statement.
Non-current assets and depreciation
Intangible and tangible assets are stated on the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Accumulated depreciation and amortization is recorded on a straight-line basis over the expected
useful life of intangible and tangible assets.
The depreciation periods are as follows:
Buildings and structures 15–65 years, Machinery and equipment 3–15 years, Other tangible assets 20–40 years,
Other long-term expenditure 5–10 years, Intangible rights 3–5 years. No depreciation is made on land.
Investments in subsidiaries and other companies are measured at cost.
Foreign currency items
Receivables and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies have been converted into the currency of Finland, the
euro, at the exchange rate quoted at the reporting date.
Inventories
Inventories are stated in the balance sheet in accordance with FIFO at the lower of cost and replacement
cost/probable sales price.
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NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT

1. Revenue
Revenue by region

2014

2013

958,109,645.82

1,133,913,693.40

69,092.55

400,381.79

958,178,738.37

1,134,314,075.19

2014

2013

746,331,190.58

900,349,645.21

EUR
Home land (Finland)
Other Europe
Total

Revenue by business
EUR
Energy trade
Energy services
Transmission services

0.00

2,831,243.16

211,017,901.04

229,258,232.54

LNG

829,646.75

1,874,954.28

958,178,738.37

1,134,314,075.19

2014

2013

Rental income

130,852.44

129,931.48

Rental income from group companies

213,996.00

202,148.00

Gain on sale of tangible assets

81,204.63

110,432.30

Income from derived products

640,675.26

0.00

Total

2. Other operative income
Other operative income
EUR

Other income
Total

5,863,557.78

185,200.04

6,930,286.11

627,711.82

Other income includes indemnity of €1.1 million under a business interruption policy.

3. Materials and services

Materials and services
EUR
Materials and supplies
Purchases during the period
Change in inventory
Materials and services total

2014

2013

863,490,612.83
158,903.06

1,038,015,906.31
533,931.23

863,649,515.89

1,038,549,837.54

Excise tax of €58.9 million (2013: €56.6 million) included in the purchase price of gas supplied for taxable use is
stated under purchases.
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4. Personnel expenses

Personnel expenses
EUR
Salaries and benefits
Pension expenses
Other employee costs

2013

9,859,777.96

9,386,997.52

2,711,047.80

3,565,669.38

637,028.89

461,112.66

3,348,076.69

4,026,782.04

13,207,854.65

13,413,779.56

Indirect employee costs
Total

2014

Personnel on average

2014

2013

Office workers

127

120

Total

127

120

5. Depreciation and amortization
Depreciations and amortizations

2014

EUR
Depreciation on intangible rights
Depreciation on other long-term costs
Depreciation on buildings
Depreciation on machinery
Depreciation on other tangible goods

2013

134,674.02

123,830.41

1,785,594.21

1,105,400.32

16,300,629.46

19,780,465.25

5,072,146.69

5,683,623.05

244,149.40

256,083.14

23,537,193.78

26,949,402.17

9,552,774.47

0.00

33,089,968.25

26,949,402.17

2014

2013

Rents

1,813,121.97

1,811,761.30

Maintenance costs

9,161,065.74

9,215,779.19

External services

7,298,697.91

6,680,052.18

Marketing costs

2,558,648.17

1,947,296.72

Losses on derivatives

7,562,720.91

0.00

Other

4,675,595.36

3,709,145.41

Total

33,069,850.06

23,364,034.80

Depreciation total
Amortization
Total

6. Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses
EUR
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7. Auditor’s fees
Auditor’s fees

2014

EUR

2013

Statutory fees

95,918.03

51,000.00

Other services

479,812.79

414,000.00

575,730.82

465,000.00

2014

2013

26,815.99

14,264.63

1,655,557.78

53,345.12

5,178,270.54

0.00

Total

8.

Finance income

Finance income
EUR
Interest income on other non-current receivables
Other finance income
Gains on disposal of subsidiary (as part of corporate
transactions
Interest income and finance income, Group
Total

354,376.27

160,953.51

7,215,020.58

228,563.26

9. Finance expenses
Finance expenses

2014

2013

Interest expenses on borrowings

3,559,374.45

3,999,285.91

Other finance expenses

1,670,159.89

1,638,533.83

EUR

Interest income and finance income, Group

166.46

0.00

Total

5,229,700.80

5,637,819.74

Finance income and expenses total

1,985,319.78

-5,409,256.48

2014

2013

10. Extraordinary items
Extraordinary items
EUR
Group subvention
Total

3,681,250.00

2,467,850.00

3,681,250.00

2,467,850.00

11. Income tax expense
Income tax expense

2014

EUR
Current tax
Total
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2013

8,430,652.61

5,871,918.90

8,430,652.61

5,871,918.90

NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET
12. Intangible assets
2014
EUR

Intangible rights

Other long-term
expenditure

Total

1,140,936.10
41,715.60
0.00
0.00
1,182,651.70

18,569,509.70
6,644,139.32
-232,067.84
-137,907.75
24,843,673.43

19,710,445.80
6 685,854.92
-232,067.84
-137,907.75
26,026,325.13

-642,717.56
-134,674.02
0.00
0.00

-11,703,975.31
-1,785,594.21
68,928.18
232,067.84

-12 346,692.87
-1 920,268.23
68,928.18
232,067.84

-777,391.58

-13,188,573.50

-13,965,965.08

405,260.12

11,655,099.93

12,060,360.05

Intangible rights

Other long-term
expenditure

Total

738,042.23
402,893.87
1,140,936.10

17,225,909.58
1,343,600.12
18,569.509.70

17,963,951.81
1,746,493.99
19,710,445.80

-518,887.15
-123,830.41

-10,598,574.99
-1,105,400.32

-11,117,462.14
-1,229,230.73

-642,717.56

-11,703,975.31

-12,346,692.87

498,218.54

6,865,534.39

7,363,752.93

Cost at January 1
Additions
Disposals
Cost transferred as part of corporate transactions
Cost at December 31
Accumulated amortization and impairment
at January 1
Depreciations
Cost transferred as part of corporate transactions
Translation difference
Accumulated depreciations and
impairment at December 31
Net book value at December 31

2013
EUR
Cost at January 1
Additions
Cost at December 31
Accumulated amortization and impairment
at January 1
Depreciation
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at December 31
Net book value at December 31

13. Tangible assets
2014

Buildings

Machinery
and
equipment

Other
tangible
assets

Advances
paid and
construction
in progress

Total

6,824,333.66

673,125,349.05

120,579,036.07

9,479,743.88

26,757,345.67

836,765,808.33

592.00

1,341,460.53

6,200,036.27

66,144.38

15,077,595.37

22,685,828.55

-1,561,365.00

-69,974.25

-4,025,361.22

0.00

-13,058,365.69

-18,715,066.16

0.00

-8,814,106.12

-10,306,608.08

-513,281.00

0.00

-19,633,995.20

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

-3,522,971.12

-3,522,971.12

Land and
water

EUR
Cost at January 1
Additions
Disposals
Cost transferred as
part of corporate
transactions
Reclassifications
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Write-downs
Cost at December
31

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

-9,552,774.47

-9,552,774.47

5,263,560.66

665,582,729.21

112,447,103.04

9,032,607.26

15,700,829.76

808,026,829.93

0.00

-273,928,751.12

-80,301,076.91

-2,888,411.17

0.00

-357,118,239.20

0.00

-16,300,629.46

-5,072,146.69

-244,149.40

0.00

-21,616,925.55

0.00

69,974.25

3,926,038.42

0.00

0.00

3,996,012.67

0.00

978,172.01

3,008,179.53

56,623.53

0.00

4,042,975.07

0.00

-289,181,234.32

-78,439,005.65

-3,075,937.04

0.00

-370,696,177.01

5,263,560.66

376,401,494.89

34,008,097.39

5,956,670.22

15,700,829.76

437,330,652.92

Accumulated
amortization and
impairment at January
1
Depreciations
Cost transferred as
part of corporate
transactions
Translation difference
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment at
December 31

Net book value at
December 31

2013
EUR
Cost at January 1

Land and
water

Buildings

Machinery and
equipment

Other tangible
assets

Advances paid
and construction
in progress

Total

821,988,654.81

6,814,194.11

668,927,356.78

119,637,326.64

9,453,739.68

17,156,037.60

Additions

14,940.00

4,197,992.27

2,964,101.47

26,004.20

21,815,595.00

29,018,632.94

Disposals

-4,800.45

0.00

-2,022,392.04

0.00

-12,214,286.93

-14,241,479.42

6,824,333.66

673,125,349.05

120,579,036.07

9,479,743.88

26,757,345.67

836,765,808.33

0.00

-254,148,285.87

-74,617,453.86

-2,632,328.03

0.00

-331,398,067.76

0,00

-19,780,465.25

-5,683,623.05

-256,083.14

0.00

-25,720,171.44

0.00

273,928,751.12

-80,301,076.91

-2,888,411.17

0.00

-357,118,239.20

6,824,333.66

399,196,597.93

40,277,959.16

6,591,332.71

26,757,345.67

479,647,569.13

Cost at December 31
Accumulated
amortization and
impairment at
January 1
Depreciations
Accumulated
depreciations and
impairment at
December 31

Net book value at
December 31

14. Investments
2014
EUR

Cost at January 1
Additions
Disposals
Cost at December 31
Net book value at
December 31

Shares in
subsidiaries

Investment
Other
in associates investments

Receivables
from group
companies

Investments

7,435,992.13

2,813,591.39

512,441.26

8,495,796.15

19,257.820.93

163,112,494.57

0.00

0.00

0.00

163,112.494.57

0.00

-200,833.00

-27,800.00

-3,178,932.47

-3,407.565.47

170,548,486.70

2,612,758.39

484,641.26

5,316,863.68

178,962.750.03

170,548,486.70

2,612,758.39

484,641.26

5,316,863.68

178,962,750.03
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2013
EUR

Cost at January 1

Shares in
subsidiaries

Investment
in associates

Other
investments

Receivables
from group
companies

Investments

19,879,262.42

7,423,492.13

2,612,758.39

492,441.26

9,350,570.64

Additions

12,500.00

200,833.00

20,000.00

0.00

233,333.00

Disposals

0.00

0.00

0.00

-854,774.49

-854,774.49

7,435,992.13

2,813,591.39

512,441.26

8,495,796.15

19,257,820.93

7,435,992.13

2,813,591.39

512,441.26

8,495,796.15

19,257,820.93

Cost at December 31
Net book value at
December 31

15. Inventories
Inventories
EUR
Product inventories
Other inventories
Prepayments
Total

2014

2013

6,598,644.46
1,579,800.96
188,679,808.34

6,650,551.52
1,579,800.96
82,747,154.72

196,858,253.76

90,977,507.20

Inventories include Take-or-Pay prepayment of €188.7 million (2013: €82.7 million) related to long-term natural
gas supply contract.

16. Non-current receivables
Non-current receivables
EUR

2014

2013

Long-term given collaterals

182,339.52

153,213.64

Other long-term receivables
Between 2–5 years
Total
Long-term loan receivables
Over 5 years

11,200.00

0.00

11,200.00

0.00

330,000.00

330,000.00

Total

330,000.00

330,000.00

Other non-current receivables

523,539.52

483,213.64

17. Current receivables
Receivables from others
EUR
Trade receivables
Short-term accruals
Other short-term receivables
Total
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2014

2013

106,660,045.48
1,011,648.81
26,962.53

121 244 560,05
3 770 265,94
2 003 636,97

107,698,656.82

127 018 462,96

Receivables from group companies
EUR
Trade receivables
Short-term accruals
Other short-term receivables
Total

Receivables from joint ventures
EUR
Trade receivables
Total

Short-term accruals
EUR
Accrual transitory interest
Accrual taxes
Other short-term accruals
Total

2014

2013

6,096,614.39
193,973.53
5,390,798.98

3,610,414.63
7,380.04
3,397,623.46

11,681,386.90

7,015,418.13

2014

2013

10,899.37

0.00

10,899.37

0.00

2014

2013

105,227.23
0.00
906,421.58

0.00
3,340,081.07
430,184.87

1,011,648.81

3,770,265.94

18. Available-for-sale investments
Available-for-sale investments
EUR
Certificates of deposit
Total

2014

2013

2,538.98

2,538.98

2,538.98

2,538.98

2014

2013

19. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
EUR
Cash at bank and in hand
Total

70,069,993.48

4,211,490.62

70,069,993.48

4,211,490.62

20. Equity
Calculation of changes in equity
EUR
Book value at January 1

Share capital

The invested
unrestricted
equity fund

178,279,205.41

33,700.18

Profit distribution

Retained earnings

Total

44,968,171.08

223,281,076.67

-17,914,000.34

-17,914,000.34

Profit for the period
Book value at December 31

39,405,978.55
178,279,205.41

33,700.18
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27,054,170.74

244,773,054.88

Calculation of distributable equity

2014

2013

33,700.18

33,700.18

27,054,170.74

27,016,763.50

EUR
Reserve for invested non-restricted equity
fund
Profit (loss) from previous financial
periods
Profit for the period

39,405,978.55

17,951,407.56

66,493,849.47

45,001,871.24

Total

21. Appropriations

Appropriations
EUR
Accumulated amortization and
impairment at January 1
Increase(-) or decrease (+)
Accumulated depreciations and
impairment at December 31

2014

2013

190,609,937.63

184,709,937.63

26,179,602.38

-5,900,000.00

164,430,335.25

190,609,937.63

2014

2013

22. Non-current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
EUR
Loans from financial institutions
Loans from financial institutions total

260,000,000.00

92,953,425.32

260,000,000.00

92,953,425.32

2014

2013

2−5 years
EUR
Loans from financial institutions
Loans from financial institutions total

260,000,000.00

92,953,425.32

260,000,000.00

92,953,425.32

23. Current liabilities
Current liabilities to group companies
EUR
Accounts payable to group companies
Accrual accounts payable to group companies

2013

405,837.63

371,701.07

43,581.61

0.00

109,780.35

16,603.74

2,114,026.33

3,296,302.89

2,673,225.92

3,684,607.70

2014

2013

0.00

71,448,491.25

Other accrual liabilities to group companies
Other short-term liabilities to group companies
Total

2014

Current liabilities to others
EUR
Loans from financial institutions
Corporate papers

100,000,000.00

0.00

Accounts payable

195,702,792.33

101,781,561.21
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Other liabilities

43,843,248.90

Accruals and deferred income

49,724,681.30

3,776,374.57

2,493,993.45

343,322,415.80

225,448,727.21

2014

2013

Accrued interest liabilities

479,328.08

176,074.38

Other accrued expenses to group companies

153,361.96

16,603.74

2,319,790.87

2,119,397.81

Total

Accrued expenses
EUR

Salary-related items
Other accrued expenses
Total

977,255.62

198,521.26

3,929,736.53

2,510,597.19

2014

2013

182,339.52
31,877,000.00
32,059,339.52

182,292.12
0.00
182,292.12

24. Guarantees given and contingent liabilities
Guarantees given and contingent liabilities
EUR
Other commitments
On behalf of own debts
On behalf of other group companies
Guarantees given and contingent liabilities total

Gasum Corporation has issued a parent company guarantee on behalf of Skangass Ltd for performance of supplier obligations
under fuel supply framework agreement between Skangass Ltd and Hansel Oy.
Operating lease commitments
EUR
No later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years
Operating lease commitments total

Renting lease commitments
EUR
No later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years
Renting lease commitments total

2014

2013

617,287
504,269
1,121,556

506,561
536,063
1,042,623

2014

2013

893,948
2,383,862
3,277,810

888,178
3,256,653
4,144,830

Derivative financial instruments
1000 EUR
Fair value of derivative financial instruments
Commodity derivatives
Interest rate derivatives
Fair value of derivative financial instruments total

2014

2013

-15,206
-3,282
-18,488

-2,458
-3,741
-6,199

Nominal value of derivative financial instruments
Commodity derivatives
Interest rate derivatives
Nominal value of derivative financial instruments total

126,310
183,607
309,917

64,003
183,000
247,003
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UNBUNDLING OF NATURAL GAS OPERATIONS
Chapter 5 of the Finnish Natural Gas Market Act (508/2000) requires natural gas operations and other operations
to be accounted separately.
Since 2003, natural gas sales operations include the share of the energy charges in sales tariffs in Gasum
Corporation’s basic gas trading business. As from 2011, balancing (extra) gas is also included in sales operations.
Gasum Corporation’s network operations include gas transmission charges, imbalance gas as well as the entire
business in respect of contracts mostly outside the tariff agreement.
Other operations include the sales of liquefied natural gas, transport use of gas, biogas and Energy Trade services.
Expenses and income have been allocated in accordance with the matching principle using management
accounting. Depreciation has been calculated in accordance with the depreciation plan in effect.
Balance sheet items have been separated in accordance with the matching principle.

Gasum – Financial Statements 2014

67

Gasum Oy, transmission activities
Statement of income
EUR

REVENUE

1.1.–31.12.2014

1.1.–31.12.2013

210,869,101.19

226,805,782.85

3,785,166.56

359,402.12

-147,049,143.99

-156,790,341.60

Other operating income
Materials and services
Raw materials and consumables
Purchases during the period
Change in stocks

-1,150,569.67

-353,345.31

-148,199,713.66

-157,143,686.91

Wages and salaries

-4,672,001.06

-5,349,180.84

Social security costs

-1,699,486.36

-2,128,700.53

-6,371,487.42

-7,477,881.37

-22,052,939.64

-25,546,993.44

-9,176,055.53

0.00

-31,228,995.17

-25,546,993.44

Other operating expenses

-15,685,322.49

-16,287,675.02

OPERATING PROFIT

13,168,749.01

20,708,948.23

1,173,204.24

30,464.69

-1,203,031.28

721,277.68

-29,827.04

751,742.37

13,138,921.97

21,460,690.60

2,135,125.00

0.00

2,135,125.00

0.00

15,274,046.97

21,460,690.60

16,122,815.28

-5,900,000.00

-6,122,505.76

-3,835,363.34

25,274,356.49

11,725,327.26

Personnel expenses

Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation according to plan
Depreciation in non-current assets

Financial income and expenses
Income from other investments in non-current assets
Interest income
Interest and other financial expenses
Interest expense

PROFIT BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Extraordinary items
Extraordinary income
Group contributions

PROFIT BEFORE APPROPRIATIONS AND TAXES
Appropriations
Increase (-) decrease (+) in depreciation difference
Income taxes
NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

Gasum – Financial Statements 2014

68

Gasum Oy, transmission activities
Balance sheet

31.12.2014

31.12.2013

158,729.00

315,618.54

8,918,879.14

6,342,420.98

9,077,608.14

6,658,039.52

412,764,313.42

436,302,161.22

10,626,707.84

21,030,825.16

423,391,021.26

457,332,986.38

360,126.59

366,512.92

360,126.59

366,512.92

432,828,755.99

464,357,538.82

5,858,902.38

6 299 397.43

Loan receivables

78,000.00

60,000.00

Other receivables

45,773.63

24,642.73

123,773.63

84,642.73

17,506,210.63

16,661,164.34

1,874,902.13

1,547,279.85

14,199.08

139,477.15

341,361.07

2,601,850.61

19,736,672.91

20,949,771.95

1,536.08

1,536.08

6,039,194.45

2,547,951.83

31,760,079.45

29,883,300.02

464,588,835.44

494,240,838.84

EUR

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets
Intangible rights
Other long-term expenditure

Tangible assets
Tangible assets of natural gas network
Advances paid and construction in progress

Financial assets
Other shares and holdings

NON-CURRENT ASSETS, TOTAL
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Receivables
Long-term receivables

Short-term receivables
Trade receivables
From Group companies
Other receivables
Accrued income

Securities
Other securities
Cash and cash equivalents
CURRENT ASSETS, TOTAL
TOTAL ASSETS
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Gasum Oy, transmission activities
Balance sheet

31.12.2014

31.12.2013

156,483,590.33

156,483,590.33

8,481,237.88

14,669,910.98

25,274,356.49

11,725,327.21

33,755,594.37

26,395,238.19

190,239,184.70

182,878,828.52

172,590,380.67

188,715,142.78

59,910,000.00

910,928.07

59,910,000.00

910,928.07

21,900,000.00

64,303,642.13

7,297,346.08

29,890,186.05

EUR

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital

Retained earnings
Net profit for the period

EQUITY, TOTAL
ACCURED APPROPRIATIONS
Accumulated depreciation difference
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Loans from financial institutions

Current liabilities
Loans from financial institutions
Trade payables
Loans from Group companies

1,030,629.13

1,952,741.08

10,198,766.90

24,270,071.56

1,422,527.96

1,319,298.65

41,849,270.07

121,735,939.47

TOTAL LIABILITIES

101,759,270.07

122,646,867.54

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

464,588,835.44

494,240,838.84

Other current liabilities
Accruals and deferred income
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Gasum Oy, sales activities
Statement of income

1.1.–31.12.2014

1.1.–31.12.2013

742,633,123.30

899,219,584.22

1,859,226.84

74,157.96

-713,572,601.69

-877,010,416.78

-2,147.46

14,468.58

-713,574,749.15

-876,995,948.20

Wages and salaries

-3,521,445.55

-2,499,124.97

Social security costs

-1,075,550.60

-1,349,092.56

-4,596,996.15

-3,848,217.53

-371,812.87

-46,807.90

-371,812.87

-46,807.90

Other operating expenses

-13,730,515.53

-4,702,169.22

OPERATING PROFIT

12,218,276.44

13,700,599.33

From Group companies

102,040.21

160,254.44

From others

429,886.72

14,915.36

531,926.93

175,169.80

-366,524.38

-5,879,874.56

165,402.55

-5,704,704.76

12,383,678.98

7,995,894.57

957,125.00

2,467,850.00

957,125.00

2,467,850.00

13,340,803.98

10,463,744.57

-2 720 469,35

-2,579,079.79

10,620,334.63

7,884,664.78

EUR

REVENUE
Other operating income
Materials and services
Raw materials and consumables
Purchases during the period
Change in stocks

Personnel expenses

Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation according to plan

Financial income and expenses

Income from other investments in non-current assets

Interest and other financial expenses

PROFIT BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Extraordinary items
Extraordinary income
Group contributions

PROFIT BEFORE APPROPRIATIONS AND TAXES
Income taxes
NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD
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Gasum Oy, sales activities
Balance sheet
EUR

31.12.2014

31.12.2013

169,937.48

131,866.72

1,617,974.11

266,894.28

1,787,911.59

398,761.00

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets
Intangible rights
Other long-term expenditure

Tangible assets
Land and water

24,546.56

28,322.96

Buildings and structures

534,129.03

23,980.72

Machinery and equipment

125,761.19

187,986.25

Advances paid and construction in progress

581,094.15

224,487.28

1,265,530.93

464,777.21

Shares in Group companies

7,423,492.13

7,435,992.13

Loan receivables from Group companies

4,941,021.66

8,495,796.15

30,643.88

23,193.16

12,395,157.67

15,954,981.44

15,448,600.19

16,818,519.65

190,259,609.30

84,326,955.68

92,000.00

60,000.00

Financial assets

Other shares and holdings

NON-CURRENT ASSETS, TOTAL
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Receivables
Long-term receivables
Loan receivables
Other receivables

66,781.94

80,088.87

158,781.94

140,088.87

88,723,094.82

104,011,383.49

9,537,158.51

5,395,371.84

Short-term receivables
Trade receivables
From Group companies
Other receivables

9,351.45

908,434.13

454,610.60

1,050,822.54

98,724,215.38

111,366,012.00

1,002.90

1,002.90

65,391,790.26

1,663,538.79

CURRENT ASSETS, TOTAL

354,535,399.78

197,497,598.24

TOTAL ASSETS

369,983,999.97

214,316,117.89

Accrued income

Securities
Other securities
Cash and cash equivalents
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Gasum Oy, sales activities
Balance sheet

31.12.2014

31.12.2013

Share capital

21,607,846.61

21,607,846.61

Retained earnings

18,608,392.87

10,723,728.08

Net profit for the period

10,620,334.63

7,884,664.79

29,228,727.50

18,608,392.87

50,836,574.11

40,216,239.48

17,640,000.00

84,141,456.10

17,640,000.00

84,141,456.10

77,600,000.00

1,071,727.37

187,862,778.10

67,071,031.39

1,125,970.69

1,029,334.53

33,387,025.58

20,095,423.93

1,531,651.49

690,905.09

301,507,425.86

89,958,422.31

TOTAL LIABILITIES

319,147,425.86

174,099,878.41

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

369,983,999.97

214,316,117.89

EUR
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

EQUITY, TOTAL
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Loans from financial institutions

Current liabilities
Loans from financial institutions
Trade payables
Loans from Group companies
Other current liabilities
Accruals and deferred income
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Gasum Oy, other activities
Other activities

1.1.–31.12.2014

1.1.–31.12.2013

4,676,513.88

8,612,014.10

1,285,892.71

194,151.73

-2,868,867.15

-4,538,453.91

993,814.08

-195,054.50

-1,875,053.07

-4,733,508.41

-1,666,331.35

-1,538,691.72

-573,039.73

-548,988.95

-2,239,371.08

-2,087,680.67

-1,112,441.27

-1,355,600.83

-376,718.94

0.00

-1,489,160.21

-1,355,600.83

-3,654,012.05

-2,374,190.50

-3,295,189.82

-1,744,814.58

5,509,889.41

22,830.56

-3,660,145.14

-479,124.65

1,849,744.27

-456,294.09

-1,445,445.55

-2,201,108.67

589,000.00

0.00

589,000.00

0.00

-856,445.55

-2,201,108.67

3,955,410.48

0.00

412,322.51

542,524.22

3,511,287.44

-1,658,584.45

EUR
REVENUE
Other operating income
Materials and services
Raw materials and consumables
Purchases during the period
Change in stocks

Personnel expenses
Wages and salaries
Social security costs

Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation according to plan
Depreciation in non-current assets

Other operating expenses
OPERATING PROFIT
Financial income and expenses
Income from other investments in non-current assets
Interest and other financial expenses

PROFIT BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Extraordinary items
Extraordinary income
Group contributions

PROFIT BEFORE APPROPRIATIONS AND TAXES
Appropriations
Increase (-) decrease (+) in depreciation difference
Income taxes
NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

Gasum – Financial Statements 2014

74

Gasum Oy, other activities
Balance sheet

31.12.2014

EUR

31.12.2013

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets
Intangible rights
Other long-term expenditure

76,593.64

50,733.28

1,118,246.68

256,219.13

1,194,840.32

306,952.41

Tangible assets
Land and water

233,118.70

1,788,819.11

Buildings and structures

6,407,308.32

8,158,265.41

Machinery and equipment

1,467,810.30

6,323,225.93

Other tangible assets
Advances paid and construction in progress

72,835.66

77,461.87

4,493,027.77

5,502,033.22

12,674,100.75

21,849,805.54

163,124,994.57

0.00

Financial assets
Shares in Group companies
Loan receivables from Group companies
Shares in associated companies
Other shares and holdings

NON-CURRENT ASSETS, TOTAL

375,842.02

0.00

2,612,758.39

2,813,591.39

93,870.79

122,735.18

166,207,465.77

2,936,326.57

180,076,406.84

25,093,084.52

739,742.08

351,154.09

160,000.00

210,000.00

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Receivables
Long-term receivables
Loan receivables
Other receivables

80,983.95

48,482.05

240,983.95

258,482.05

Trade receivables

430,740.03

572,012.22

From Group companies

269,326.26

72,766.44

Short-term receivables

From joint ventures
Other receivables
Prepayments and accrued income

Cash and cash equivalents
CURRENT ASSETS, TOTAL
TOTAL ASSETS
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10,899.37

0.00

3,412.00

955,725.70

215,677.14

117,592.79

930,054.80

1,718,097.15

0

0.00

1,910,780.83

2,327,733.29

181,987,187.67

27,420,817.81

Gasum Oy, other activities
Balance sheet

31.12.2014

31.12.2013

187,768.47

187,768.47

33,700.18

33,700.18

-35,460.01

1,623,124.44

3,511,287.44

-1,658,584.44

3,475,827.43

-35,460.00

3,697,296.08

186,008.65

-8,160,045.42

1,894,794.85

182,450,000.00

7,901,041.15

182,450,000.00

7,901,041.15

Loans from financial institutions

500,000.00

6,073,121.76

Trade payables

542,668.15

4,820,343.80

Loans from Group companies

516,626.10

702,532.08

1,618,447.64

5,359,185.81

EUR

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital

Reserve for invested unrestricted equity
Retained earnings
Net profit for the period

EQUITY, TOTAL
ACCURED APPROPRIATIONS
Accumulated depreciation difference
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Loans from financial institutions

Current liabilities

Other current liabilities
Accruals and deferred income

822,195.12

483,789.70

3,999,937.01

17,438,973.15

TOTAL LIABILITIES

186,449,937.01

25,340,014.30

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

181,987,187.67

27,420,817.80
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ACCOUNTING JOURNALS

Balance sheet book for the period, bound
Journal, computer printout
General ledger, computer printout
Accounts payable, computer printout
Accounts receivable, computer printout
Payroll accounting, computer printout
Fixed asset accounting, computer printout

Accounting journals are kept for a minimum of 10 years and vouchers for 6 years from the end of each
reporting period.

Formulas for key financial indicators

Equity ratio =

Return on equity =

Shareholder’ equity
Balance sheet total – advances received

Profit for the year
Total equity (average for the period)

Operating profit
Revenue

Operating profit margin =
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROPOSAL FOR DISTRIBUTION OF PROFITS
At December 31, 2014 the parent company had distributable funds of €66,493,849.47, which includes the profit
for the period, €39,405,978.55. The Board of Directors proposes to the general meeting of shareholders that no
dividend be paid and that the profit for the period be transferred to retained earnings.

SIGNATURES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S NOTE

Signatures to the financial statements
Espoo, February 23, 2015

Johanna Lamminen

Christer Paltschik

Chair of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors

Aleksei Novitsky

Ari Suomilammi

Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors

Kristiina Vuori
Member of the Board of Directors

Auditor’s note
The auditor’s report has been issued on this date.
Helsinki, February 25, 2015
PricewaterhouseCoopers Oy
Authorized Public Accountants

Pasi Karppinen
Authorized Public Accountant
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Auditor’s Report (Translation from the Finnish Original)
To the Annual General Meeting of Gasum Oy
We have audited the accounting records, the financial statements, the report of the
Board of Directors and the administration of Gasum Oy for the year ended 31 December, 2014. The financial statements comprise the consolidated statement of financial position, income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, as well as the parent company’s balance sheet, income statement, cash flow statement and notes to the financial statements.
Responsibility of the Board of Directors and the Managing Director
The Board of Directors and the Managing Director are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU, as
well as for the preparation of financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors that give a true and fair view in accordance with the laws and regulations
governing the preparation of the financial statements and the report of the Board of
Directors in Finland. The Board of Directors is responsible for the appropriate arrangement of the control of the company’s accounts and finances, and the Managing
Director shall see to it that the accounts of the company are in compliance with the
law and that its financial affairs have been arranged in a reliable manner.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements, on the consolidated financial statements and on the report of the Board of Directors based on
our audit. The Auditing Act requires that we comply with the requirements of professional ethics.We conducted our audit in accordance with good auditing practice
in Finland. Good auditing practice requires that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and the report
of the Board of Directors are free from material misstatement, and whether the
members of the Supervisory Board and the Board of Directors of the parent company or the Managing Directors are guilty of an act or negligence which may result in
liability in damages towards the company or whether they have violated the Limited
Liability Companies Act or the articles of association of the company.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and the report of the Board of
Directors. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation of financial statements and report of the Board of Directors that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
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accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the group in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU.
Opinion on the Company’s Financial Statements and the Report of the Board of Directors
In our opinion, the financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors
give a true and fair view of both the consolidated and the parent company’s financial
performance and financial position in accordance with the laws and regulations
governing the preparation of the financial statements and the report of the Board of
Directors in Finland. The information in the report of the Board of Directors
is consistent with the information in the financial statements.
Other opinions based on statutory law
Unbundled statements of income and balance sheets are prepared in accordance
with Finnish Natural Gas Market Act and with related rules and regulations.
Other Opinions
We support that the financial statements and the consolidated financial statements
should be adopted. The proposal by the Board of Directors regarding the use of the
profit shown in the balance sheet is in compliance with the Limited Liability Companies Act. We support that the Members of the Supervisory Board and the Board of
Directors and the Managing Directors of the parent company should be discharged
from liability for the financial period audited by us.
Helsinki, February 25, 2015
PricewaterhouseCoopers Oy
Authorised Public Accountants
Pasi Karppinen
Authorised Public Accountant

